
This will be a hybrid meeting held in person in the Village Council Chambers with a remote participation option available via Zoom due to 
the COVID-19 pandemic.  
The Village of Beverly Hills will provide necessary reasonable auxiliary aids and services, such as signers for the hearing impaired and 
audiotapes of printed materials being considered at the meeting, to individuals with disabilities attending the meeting upon three 
working days’ notice to the Village. Individuals with disabilities requiring auxiliary aids or services should contact the Village by writing or 
phone, 18500 W. Thirteen Mile Beverly Hills, MI 48025 (248) 646-6404. 

Village of Beverly Hills             Municipal Building 
Regular Village Council Meeting               18500 W. 13 Mile Road  
Tuesday, April 19, 2022                                 7:30 p.m. 
 

Zoom link: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/88052749504 
Meeting ID: 880 5274 9504 

Dial in: 1-646-876-9923 (US)  
 

AGENDA 
Roll Call/Call to order 
 
Pledge of Allegiance 
 
Amendments to Agenda/Approve Agenda 
 
Special Order of Business: Introduction of Village Manager Jeffrey Campbell 
 
Community Announcements 
 
Public Comments on items not on the published agenda 
 
Consent Agenda 
1. Review and consider approval of minutes of a regular Council meeting held April 5, 2022.  
2. Review and consider approval of minutes of a special Council meeting held April 7, 2022. 
3. Review and file bills recapped as of Monday, April 11, 2022.  

 
Business Agenda 
1. Review and consider awarding the Beverly Park Pathway Improvement bid to JSS-Macomb, LLC.  
2. Review and consider Performance Resolution for the Michigan Department of Transportation.  
3. Review and consider authorizing Hubbell, Roth, and Clark to perform preliminary engineering 

services for Douglas Evans parking lot.  
4. Review and consider Fiscal Year 21-22 Budget Amendments.  
 
Public comments  
 
Manager’s report 
 
Council comments 
 
Closed Session to discuss Attorney-Client Privilege Memorandum.  
 
Adjournment 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/88052749504


REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES – APRIL 5, 2022 – PAGE 1 

 

THESE MINUTES ARE NOT OFFICIAL. THEY HAVE NOT BEEN APPROVED BY THE VILLAGE COUNCIL. 

 

Present: President George, President Pro-Tem Hrydziuszko; Members: Abboud, 

Kecskemeti, Mooney, O’Gorman, and Peddie 

 

Absent: None 

  

Also Present: Interim Village Manager/Village Clerk/Assistant Manager, Rutkowski  

  Village Attorney, Ryan  

 

President George called the regular Village Council meeting to order at 7:30 p.m. in the Village 

Council Chambers located at 18500 W. Thirteen Mile Road, Beverly Hills, MI 48025. The Pledge 

of Allegiance was recited by those in attendance.  

 

AMENDMENTS TO AGENDA/APPROVE AGENDA 

Motion by Mooney, second by Hrydziuszko, to approve the agenda as published.  

 

 Motion passed. 

 

SPECIAL ORDER OF BUSINESS: RECOGNITION OF BEVERLY HILLS LIONS CLUB 

50TH ANNIVERSARY 

President George congratulated the Beverly Hills Lions Club on their 50th Anniversary and 

presented them with a certificate of recognition. He thanked the Lions for their service to the 

community and highlighted the local activities the Lions Club participates in including the 

Memorial Day Fun Run/Walk, Project Kidsight, and the Adopt-a-Road Clean Up on Lahser.  

 

Lions Club President Patrick Wojas accepted the certificate and spoke about the club. He talked 

about the charities the Lions Club supports. He said they have recently doubled their membership 

and are still looking to expand. He thanked the Council for the recognition.  

 

COMMUNITY ANNOUNCEMENTS 

Janet Mooney, Southfield Township Treasurer, gave a shout out to her nephew who will be 

appearing on television soon. She stated that the tax collection rate for Beverly Hills was at 98.5%. 

She introduced the new Township Clerk, Eileen Harryvan.  

 

Eileen Harryvan, Southfield Township Clerk, introduced herself as the newly appointed Clerk and 

stated that she intendeds on running for the position in the next election. She stated the Southfield 

Township staff and Village Clerk Rutkowski has been supportive and helpful in her new role. She 

said she is working to streamline processes in the office.  

 

President George noted that the Council will be holding a special meeting on Thursday, April 7, 

2022 at 6:00 p.m. to review and consider the Village Manager Employment Agreement.  

 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 

Dorothy Pfeifer, 160 Charrington Court, commented on the large trucks that go by her street. She 

said there is no turn lane and commented on the speeding. She would like truck traffic limited in 

the area.  

 

CONSENT AGENDA 

Motion by Mooney, second by Peddie, be it resolved, the consent agenda is approved. 

C1 



REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES – APRIL 5, 2022 – PAGE 2 

 

THESE MINUTES ARE NOT OFFICIAL. THEY HAVE NOT BEEN APPROVED BY THE VILLAGE COUNCIL. 

 

1. Review and consider approval of minutes of a joint Parks & Recreation/Village Council meeting 

held January 20, 2022. 

2. Review and consider approval of minutes of a joint Planning Commission/Village Council meeting 

held February 9, 2022. 

3. Review and consider approval of minutes of a special Council meeting held March 12, 2022. 

4. Review and consider approval of minutes of a regular Council meeting held March 15, 2022. 

5. Review and consider approval of minutes of a special Council meeting held March 22, 2022.  

6. Review and file bills recapped as of Monday, March 28, 2022. 

7. Set public hearing date for May 3, 2022 to receive comments on the Fiscal Year 2022/2023 proposed 

budget. 

8. Set public hearing date for May 3, 2022 to receive comments on Special Assessments to be added to 

the tax roll.  

 

Roll Call Vote: 

Motion passed (7-0) 

 

BUSINESS AGENDA 

REVIEW AND CONSIDER BEVERLY HILLS LIONS CLUB’S REQUEST TO HOST 

WHITE CANE COLLECTION FROM APRIL 28 TO MAY 8, 2022 

Rutkowski gave an overview. Administration received a request from the Beverly Hills Lions Club 

to host their annual White Cane Collection in the Village from April 28 – May 8, 2022. The Lions 

plan to collect donations at the Corners Shopping Center, Market Fresh at the 13 Mile and 

Southfield Road intersection. Funds raised will be used primarily to support activities related to 

the sight and hearing impaired. The Lions requested that the sign outside of the Village Office 

temporarily read: “Support Lions White Cane Collection April 28 through May 8, 2022.” A 

Certificate of Insurance naming the Village has already been submitted to the Clerk’s Office.  

 

Motion by Abboud, second by O’Gorman, the Beverly Hills Village Council authorizes 

the Beverly Hills Lions Club to solicit donations for their annual White Cane Collection 

from April 28 to May 8, 2022 within Beverly Hills and approves their request to have the 

sign outside of the Village Office temporarily read: “Support Lions White Cane Collection 

April 28 through May 8, 2022” provided that a Certificate of Liability Insurance naming 

the Village as an additional insured is submitted to the Clerk’s Office. 

 

Roll Call Vote: 

Motion passed (7-0) 

 

REVIEW AND CONSIDER LIONS CLUB’S REQUEST TO USE VILLAGE STREETS 

FOR THE 38TH ANNUAL MEMORIAL DAY FUN RUN/WALK 

The Beverly Hills Lions Club is requesting use of several Village streets for their 38th annual Fun 

Run/Walk on Memorial Day, Monday, May 30, 2022 from 9:00 am to 10:00 am.  They are also 

requesting that any permit fees be waived, as the Village has done in the past.  Proceeds from the 

event support programs involved with helping the blind and hearing impaired, as well as Beverly 

Hills community charities.   

 

A map showing the proposed route was provided for review. A letter from the event chairperson, 

Roy Waters, was also provided.  A Certificate of Liability Insurance naming the Village of Beverly 

Hills as an additional insured has been submitted to the Clerk’s office.  



REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES – APRIL 5, 2022 – PAGE 3 

 

THESE MINUTES ARE NOT OFFICIAL. THEY HAVE NOT BEEN APPROVED BY THE VILLAGE COUNCIL. 

 

 

Motion by Abboud, second by Hrydziuszko, the Beverly Hills Village Council authorizes 

the Beverly Hills Lions Club to use the streets as detailed on the attached map on Monday, 

May 30, 2022 from 9:00 am to 10:00 am for their annual Fun Run/Walk and waives any 

permit fee provided that a Certificate of Liability Insurance naming the Village of Beverly 

Hills as an additional insured is filed with the Clerk’s office.  

 

Roll Call Vote: 

Motion passed (7-0) 

 

REVIEW AND CONSIDER JASON’S OUTDOOR SERVICES’ PROPOSAL FOR 

LANDSCAPING SERVICES AT BEVERLY PARK 

Rutkowski provided an overview. For the past several years, the Village of Beverly Hills has 

engaged the services of Jason’s Outdoor Services to provide landscaping maintenance at Beverly 

Park.  In addition to weeding, trimming, and clean up, they also spread mulch in the flower beds.  

We are in receipt of a proposal from Jason’s Outdoor Services to provide landscaping maintenance 

at Beverly Park for calendar year 2022.   

 

The quote was provided for review and includes edging, weeding, and trimming of the flower 

beds, mulch, a spring clean-up, and a fall-clean up. Per direction from Council two years ago, the 

quote contains organic weed remover.  The proposed price is $5,886.00. The Village has been 

pleased with the services provided over the last few years.   

 

At their March 17, 2022 meeting, the Beverly Hills Parks & Recreation Board recommended the 

Village Council approve the proposal submitted by Jason’s Outdoor Services in the amount of 

$5,886.00 for landscaping maintenance at Beverly Park for calendar year 2022 as outlined on the 

proposal.  Funds are available in account 101-751-778.03 (R&M Park).   

  

Motion by O’Gorman, second by Mooney, be it resolved, the Beverly Hills Village Council 

approves the proposal submitted by Jason’s Outdoor Services in the amount of $5,886.00 

for landscaping maintenance at Beverly Park for calendar year 2022 as outlined on the 

attached proposal.  Funds are available in account 101-751-778.03 (R&M Park).    

 

Roll Call Vote: 

Motion passed (7-0) 

 

SCULPTURE IN THE PARKS UPDATE 

Janice Hausman, member of the Parks & Recreation Board, was in attendance to provide an update 

on the Sculpture in the Parks Program. She stated that there were 28 entries, including two 

international entries. The jury narrowed it down to five recommendations to present to the Parks 

& Recreation Board. Four pieces of art will be installed at Beverly Park and one will be placed at 

Riverside Park in May. The finalists were “Kestrel” by Brian Ferriby, “Weathered #5” by Helen 

Hierta, “Composition in Three Colors #1” by Dennis Cook, “Just One of Those Things” by Jim 

Wolnosky, and “Two Half Moons” by Kelly O’Neill. Hausman stated that by each work of art 

there will be a sign with a QR linked to the Village website with more information on the piece 

and artist.  

 



REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES – APRIL 5, 2022 – PAGE 4 

 

THESE MINUTES ARE NOT OFFICIAL. THEY HAVE NOT BEEN APPROVED BY THE VILLAGE COUNCIL. 

 

REVIEW AND CONSIDER PARKS & RECREATION BOARD’S RECOMMENDATION 

TO NAME PARK #5 “BEVERLY GREEN” 

Rutkowski provided an overview. After receiving several suggestions for naming Park #5 in late 

2021, the Parks & Recreation Board narrowed the options down to 3 at their January 20, 2022 joint 

meeting and the Village created a second public form for name suggestions. Residents were asked 

to select from Beverly Green, Greenfield Park, Sunrise Park, or to type in a suggestion of their 

own.  The Village received 230 responses between the end of January and early March. 40% of 

respondents selected Beverly Green as their choice for Park #5’s official name. Greenfield Park 

received 21% of the votes and Sunrise Park received 17% of the votes. A chart showing the top 

responses was displayed.  

 

At their March 17, 2022 meeting, the Parks & Recreation Board voted to recommend that the 

Village Council name the property commonly known as “Park #5” (Parcel ID: 24-01-284-001) 

Beverly Green. 

 

If approved, the Parks & Recreation Plan, Village Master Plan, and Village maps will need to be 

updated to show the new name.  

 

Motion by Hrydziuszko, second by Mooney, be it resolved, the Beverly Hills Village 

Council names the park property commonly known as Park #5 located at Beverly Road 

and Greenfield Road (Parcel ID: 24-01-284-001) “Beverly Green.”  

 

Roll Call Vote: 

Motion passed (7-0) 

 

REVIEW AND CONSIDER PARKS & RECREATION BOARD’S RECOMMENDATION 

TO HOST MOVIE IN THE PARK 

Rutkowski gave an overview of the request. The annual Movie in the Park is scheduled for 

Thursday, August 18, 2022 at Beverly Park at dusk. The Parks & Recreation Board has selected 

Sing 2 as the movie to show.  

 

At their March 17, 2022 meeting, the Parks & Recreation Board recommended that the Village 

Council authorize the Parks & Recreation Board to host Movie in the Park on Thursday, August 

18, 2022 in an amount not to exceed $2,500.00. Further, the Board recommends Council approve 

the agreement with FunFlicks for the movie screen and generator rental. Funds are available in 

Account 101-747-894.00 (Special Events/Other Events). The agreement was provided and has 

been reviewed by the Village Attorney. 

 

Motion by Peddie, second by Hrydziuszko, be it resolved, the Beverly Hills Village 

Council authorizes the Parks & Recreation Board to host Movie in the Park on Thursday, 

August 18, 2022 in an amount not to exceed $2,500.00. Further, the Council authorizes 

Administration to execute the agreement with FunFlicks for the movie screen and generator 

rental. Funds are available in Account 101-747-894.00 (Special Events/Other Events). 

 

Roll Call Vote: 

Motion passed (7-0) 

 



REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES – APRIL 5, 2022 – PAGE 5 

 

THESE MINUTES ARE NOT OFFICIAL. THEY HAVE NOT BEEN APPROVED BY THE VILLAGE COUNCIL. 

 

REVIEW AND CONSIDER AMERICAN RESCUE PLAN ACT (ARPA) FUNDING 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

The Village of Beverly Hills will receive funds in the amount of $1,085,709.90 through the 

American Rescue Plan Act/Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds. Administration 

is recommending that the Council allocate these funds toward eligible water and sewer 

infrastructure projects.  

 

At the March 15, 2022 meeting, Council reviewed and discussed cost estimates prepared by our 

consulting engineers at Hubbell, Roth & Clark, Inc. detailing five recommended projects that the 

ARPA funds could be used on. Council then moved to instruct Administration to prepare a formal 

recommendation for projects #1, 2, and 4: Marguerite Street & Hummel Street Water Main 

Replacement Project, Sanitary Pump Station Improvements, and Water Service Line Material 

Verifications, as outlined on HRC’s memo dated March 10, 2022. The costs of these projects are 

outlined below.  

 

Project Estimated Cost 

Marguerite & Hummel Street Water Main 
Replacement Project   $     490,350.00  

Sanitary Pump Station Improvements  $     352,720.00  

Water Service Line Material Verifications 
(354 total)  $     354,000.00  

  

Total  $ 1,197,070.00  

ARPA Funding Available  $ 1,085,709.90  

Village Responsibility   $     111,360.10  

 

To complete all 354 required Water Service Line Material Verifications, the Village would end up 

being about $111,000 over its ARPA allocation. The Village has applied for the Oakland County 

Critical Infrastructure Planning Grant, which, if awarded, could cover some of the costs of the 

remaining $111,000. Assuming the Village does not receive additional grant funding, 

Administration is recommending allocating $111,000 from the Water Fund in Fiscal Year 22-23 

to cover any remaining costs for the projects listed above.  

 

Motion by Mooney, second by Peddie, be it resolved, the Beverly Hills Village Council 

authorizes Administration to allocate the American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) funds of 

$1,085,709.90 to the following projects as outlined on Hubbell, Roth, & Clark’s 

memorandum dated March 10, 2022: Marguerite Street & Hummel Street Water Main 

Replacement Project ($490,350.00), Sanitary Pump Station Improvements ($352,720.00), 

and Water Service Line Material Verifications ($354,000.00). Funds are available in Fund 

287.  Be it further resolved, $111,000.00 will be budgeted from the Water Fund (Fund 592) 

in Fiscal Year 22-23 to cover the additional expenses needed to complete these projects.  

 

Roll Call Vote: 

Motion passed (7-0) 

 

SET BUDGET SESSION DATE 



REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES – APRIL 5, 2022 – PAGE 6 

 

THESE MINUTES ARE NOT OFFICIAL. THEY HAVE NOT BEEN APPROVED BY THE VILLAGE COUNCIL. 

 

Council received a copy of the preliminary draft budget at the April 5, 2022 meeting. Each year 

Council holds a Budget Session to review the proposed budget. Administration recommended the 

meeting be held either April 20 or April 18 to allow Administration time to make any necessary 

revisions prior to the May 3, 2022 meeting when the budget is scheduled to be adopted. The 

Council agreed to set the budget hearing for Monday, April 18th at 6:30 p.m. in the Village Council 

Chambers.  

 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 

None. 

 

MANAGER’S REPORT 

Yard Waste Collection: Yard waste collection will begin the week of April 4, 2022. Residents are 

asked to set yard waste at the curb by 7:00 a.m. on their regular collection day. A list of acceptable 

yard waste items is available in the Village Calendar, on the Village website, and on SOCRRA’s 

website. 

 

Curbside Chipping: Curbside chipping will also resume the week of April 4, 2022. Residents can 

place stacked branches between 2 and 6 inches in diameter at the curb for collection and chipping 

by our DPW crew. We ask that branches be stacked and not bundled, and that the cut ends all face 

the direction of traffic flow. Collection will be 1-2 days after the regular trash/recycling/yard waste 

collection. 

 

Easter Egg Hunt: Kensington Church will be hosting its annual Easter Egg Hunt at Beverly Park 

on Saturday, April 9, 2022 from 11:00 a.m. – 12:30 p.m. This event is free and open to the public. 

More details about the event can be found at www.kensingtonchurch.org/birminghameaster   

 

Grant Applications Submitted: Two grant applications were submitted on behalf of the Village this 

week: the Michigan Natural Resources Trust Fund grant for the acquisition of 30815 Wendbrook 

Lane and the Oakland County Critical Infrastructure Planning grant. Thanks to our partners at Six 

Rivers Land Conservancy and Hubbell, Roth, and Clark for their work on these applications, 

respectively. Administration will keep Council updated on the status of the applications in the 

upcoming months.  

 

Good Friday: The Village Office will be closed on Friday, April 15, 2022 in observance of Good 

Friday. Trash collection will not be interrupted.  

 

COUNCIL COMMENTS 

Peddie gave an update on the last Planning Commission meeting where the Sign Ordinance and 

business licensing were discussed. She also stated that the Commission would like to revisit the 

200’ rule in the Fence Ordinance. She stated that she is looking forward to Councilmember 

Abboud’s report on electronic signs. She reported that the Planning Commission stated the Village 

should be the standard and not the exception when it comes to electronic signs.  

 

Abboud gave an update on the SEMCOG General Assembly Meeting. He believes there should be 

more attention paid to electric vehicles. He attended the MML Capitol Conference in March and 

moderated a session. He reached Level 2 of the Elected Officials Academy. He sent his 

condolences to the families of Behnam Rasho and Saad Hanna Halabo. Both men were recently 

http://www.kensingtonchurch.org/birminghameaster


REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES – APRIL 5, 2022 – PAGE 7 

 

THESE MINUTES ARE NOT OFFICIAL. THEY HAVE NOT BEEN APPROVED BY THE VILLAGE COUNCIL. 

 

tragically killed. He said the Chaldean American Chamber of Commerce and Chaldean 

Community Foundation are working diligently to identify and enact solutions for change.  
 

Mooney said it was an honor to see former Councilmember Dorothy Pfeifer at the meeting. He 

asked Attorney Ryan to keep Council informed on the upcoming court hearing regarding the 

Zoning Board of Appeals. He thanked Kecskemeti and George for their work on the Personnel 

Committee regarding the hiring of a new manager. He stated that the Council meeting agendas are 

heavy on parks related items and Council should have other priorities. He stated the Parks & 

Recreation Board is doing a good job.  

 

Hrydziuszko reported that the Memorial Day Parade and Carnival are happening this year after a 

hiatus due to the COVID-19 pandemic. The Committee is looking for volunteers to help with the 

parade and an organizer for the Bike Brigade. She reported that resident and former Planning 

Commissioner George Ostrowski provided a preliminary design for Beverly Green at the last Parks 

& Recreation Board meeting. The Board gave him feedback and he will adjust the plans based on 

that and later share with residents for input. She thanked Ostrowski for his work.  

 

George thanked Ostrowski for his work on the park design. He thanked Mooney and the Personnel 

Committee for their work on the manager search. He thanked Rutkowski for her efforts as Interim 

Manager. He noted that there is a lot of unseen work that she does preparing meeting packets, etc. 

He is excited for the grant applications that were submitted. He commented on the ARPA funded 

projects and said that there are a lot of good things going on. He said he has a call scheduled 

tomorrow regarding sidewalks and he is looking forward to that.  

 

ADJOURNMENT 

Motion by Mooney, second by Abboud, to adjourn the meeting at 8:48 p.m.  

 

Motion passed.  

 

 

 

 

John George     Kristin Rutkowski   

Council President    Village Clerk   



SPECIAL COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES – APRIL 7, 2022 – PAGE 1 

 

THESE MINUTES ARE NOT OFFICIAL. THEY HAVE NOT BEEN APPROVED BY THE VILLAGE COUNCIL. 

 

Present: President George, President Pro-Tem Hrydziuszko; Members: Abboud, 

Kecskemeti, Mooney, O’Gorman, and Peddie 

 

Absent: None 

  

Also Present: Interim Village Manager/Village Clerk/Assistant Manager, Rutkowski  

 

President George called the special Village Council meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. in the Village 

Council Chambers located at 18500 W. Thirteen Mile Road, Beverly Hills, MI 48025. The Pledge 

of Allegiance was recited by those in attendance.  

 

AMENDMENTS TO AGENDA/APPROVE AGENDA 

Motion by Mooney, second by Peddie, to approve the agenda as published.  

 

 Motion passed. 

 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 

None. 

 

BUSINESS AGENDA 

REVIEW AND CONSIDER VILLAGE MANAGER EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT 

WITH JEFFREY CAMPBELL 

George gave an overview of the proposed Village Manager Employment Agreement. He noted 

that it has been signed by the candidate, Jeffrey Campbell, and by the Village’s Labor Attorney. 

 

Motion by Mooney, second by Hrydziuszko, be it resolved, the Beverly Hills Village 

Council approves the Village Manager Employment Agreement with Jeffrey Campbell as 

submitted and authorizes the Council President to sign the agreement on the Village’s 

behalf.  

 

Roll Call Vote: 

Motion passed (7-0)  

 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 

None.  

 

ADJOURNMENT 

Motion by Mooney, second by Abboud, to adjourn the meeting at 6:04 p.m.  

 

Motion passed.  

 

 

 

 

John George     Kristin Rutkowski   

Council President    Village Clerk   

C2 



TO PRESIDENT GEORGE & MEMBERS OF THE VILLAGE COUNCIL.   THE FOLLOWING IS A LIST OF

EXPENDITURES FOR APPROVAL.  ACCOUNTS PAYABLE RUN FROM 03/29/2022 THROUGH 04/11/2022.

ACCOUNT TOTALS:

101 GENERAL FUND $69,774.80

202 MAJOR ROAD FUND $7,119.95

203 LOCAL STREET FUND $25,289.16

205 PUBLIC SAFETY DEPARTMENT FUND $45,501.59

285 RETIREE HEALTH CARE FUND $4,200.00

592 WATER/SEWER OPERATION FUND $262,520.46

701 TRUST & AGENCY FUND $400.00

TOTAL $414,805.96

MANUAL CHECKS- COMERICA $50.00

MANUAL CHECKS- INDEPENDENT $0.00

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE $414,855.96

GRAND TOTAL $414,855.96

C3



CHECK REGISTER FOR VILLAGE OF BEVERLY HILLS 1/1Page: 04/07/2022 02:50 PM
User: JAY
DB: Beverly Hills

CHECK DATE FROM 03/29/2022 - 04/11/2022

AmountVendor NameVendorCheckBankCheck Date

Bank COM COMERICA

V50.00 ADRIANA WALKER6061385113COM04/04/2022
50.00 ADRIANA WALKER6061385114COM04/04/2022
958.17 5 ALARM6024985115COM04/11/2022
200.00 ABEL ELECTRONICS5878785116COM04/11/2022
900.00 ALL SEASONS ROOF LLCMISC85117COM04/11/2022
248.33 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES6021785118COM04/11/2022
300.00 AMERICAN STANDARD ROOFING LLCMISC85119COM04/11/2022
78.40 APPRIVER, LLC5912585120COM04/11/2022
76.00 AVANTE ENTERPRISES, LLC5998085121COM04/11/2022
300.00 BASEMENT CRACKSMISC85122COM04/11/2022
400.00 BEEBE, BRADLEY WMISC85123COM04/11/2022
400.00 BEIER HOWLETT,P.C.3274885124COM04/11/2022
600.00 BELLINGER BUILDINGMISC85125COM04/11/2022
115.00 BOB ADAMS TOWING5048985126COM04/11/2022
900.00 C & L WARDMISC85127COM04/11/2022
130.59 CINTAS CORPORATION #315934785128COM04/11/2022
858.00 CLEANNET5932385129COM04/11/2022
160.25 COMCAST5143985130COM04/11/2022

28,296.64 COMEAU EQUIPMENT CO INC.0450085131COM04/11/2022
700.00 DESIGN BUILD ALTERNATIVESMISC85132COM04/11/2022

6,744.14 DTE ENERGY5138585133COM04/11/2022
105.00 EAGLE LANDSCAPING & SUPPLY6037285134COM04/11/2022

1,050.00 ERIC KOENIG3068585135COM04/11/2022
400.00 EVER-DRY WATERPROOFINGMISC85136COM04/11/2022
200.00 FOUNDATION SYSTEMS OF MICHIGANMISC85137COM04/11/2022

3,183.75 GEI CONSULTANTS, INC.6061185138COM04/11/2022
200.00 HANSON HEATINGMISC85139COM04/11/2022
29.00 HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES 3120285140COM04/11/2022
300.00 HOME INSPECTION PLUS INCMISC85141COM04/11/2022

1,050.00 HOWARD SHOCK3257885142COM04/11/2022
2,962.65 HUBBELL ROTH & CLARK INC0850085143COM04/11/2022

290.00 HYDROCORP5895085144COM04/11/2022
51.00 J.C. EHRLICH5983985145COM04/11/2022

2,865.00 J.H. HART URBAN FORESTRY3907085146COM04/11/2022
212.00 JANICE HAUSMAN5110185147COM04/11/2022

2,477.53 JASON'S OUTDOOR SERVICES LLC5915885148COM04/11/2022
300.00 JOHN GRAHAMMISC85149COM04/11/2022

1,050.00 JOHN MILLIRON3052185150COM04/11/2022
400.00 KEARNS BROTHERSMISC85151COM04/11/2022

1,575.00 KELLER THOMA0930085152COM04/11/2022
164.97 KRISTIN RUTKOWSKI6007785153COM04/11/2022
300.00 KROLL CONSTRUCTIONMISC85154COM04/11/2022
150.00 LEXISNEXIS RISK SOLUTIONS 5179285155COM04/11/2022
737.08 LOU'S TRANSPORT INC.5135085156COM04/11/2022
600.00 MAJESTIC HOME SOULTIONSMISC85157COM04/11/2022

1,050.00 MICHAEL MILES3179485158COM04/11/2022
37.00 MICHIGAN MUNICIPAL LEAGUE5961485159COM04/11/2022

45,254.75 MICHIGAN MUNICIPAL RISK1100085160COM04/11/2022
200.00 MICHIGAN SOLAR SOLUTIONSMISC85161COM04/11/2022
408.90 MIKE SAVOIE CHEVROLET 5933085162COM04/11/2022
300.00 MR ROOFMISC85163COM04/11/2022
695.00 OAKLAND COMMUNITY COLLEGE/CREST5973585164COM04/11/2022

205,367.10 OAKLAND COUNTY TREASURER'S5083085165COM04/11/2022
700.00 PANETTA CONSTRUCTION LLCMISC85166COM04/11/2022

1,260.00 PLANTE & MORAN, PLLC3003585167COM04/11/2022
529.50 PRESSURE VESSEL TESTING5970985168COM04/11/2022
60.00 PTS COMMUNICATIONS6038685169COM04/11/2022
769.20 RICHARD DOWNEY6061685170COM04/11/2022
80.00 ROCKET ENTERPRISE INC. 5939685171COM04/11/2022

35,451.00 S.O.C.R.R.A.1650085172COM04/11/2022
48,474.45 S.O.C.W.A.1660085173COM04/11/2022

200.00 SAS SERVICES INCMISC85174COM04/11/2022
300.00 SAUTER BALLOONS6061585175COM04/11/2022
469.34 SOUTHFIELD POSTAL SERVICE3814585176COM04/11/2022

1,200.00 SUNSET MAINTENANCE SERVICE1770085177COM04/11/2022
618.72 TERMINIX PROCESSING CENTER6039885178COM04/11/2022

8,062.50 THOMAS J RYAN PC.3104385179COM04/11/2022
300.00 UNITED BUILDING SERVICE COMISC85180COM04/11/2022

COM TOTALS:

414,855.96 Total of 67 Disbursements:

50.00 Less 1 Void Checks:
414,905.96 Total of 68 Checks:



B1 

Village of Beverly Hills ● 18500 W. 13 Mile Road, Beverly Hills, MI 48025 ● 248-646-6404 

To: Honorable President George; Village Council Members 

From: Kristin Rutkowski, Interim Village Manager/Village Clerk/Assistant Village Manager 

Subject: Beverly Park Pathway Improvement 

Date: April 13, 2022 

A few months ago, the Parks & Recreation Board recommended that the Village Council authorize 
Administration to seek bids for the Beverly Park Path Improvements Project. The project includes drainage 
improvements and resurfacing of the gravel path at Beverly Park. The request for bids was published on 
MITN/BidNet Direct on March 8, 2022 and a public bid opening was held on April 5, 2022 at the Village 
Office. 

The low bid was submitted by JSS – Macomb, LLC in the amount of $47,174.10. The bid tabulation and 
recommendation letter from Hubbell, Roth, & Clark is attached for Council’s review. Administration 
recommends that Council award the bid to JSS – Macomb, LLC.  

Suggested Resolution 
Be it resolved, the Beverly Hills Village Council awards the Beverly Park Path Improvements Project bid to 
JSS – Macomb, LLC in the amount of $47,174.10. Funds are available in account 208-900-985.00 (Capital 
Park Site Improvement).  

Attachment 



 

Delhi Township 

2101 Aurelius Rd. 

Suite 2A 

Holt, MI 48842 

517-694-7760 

Detroit 

535 Griswold St. 

Buhl Building, Ste 1650 

Detroit, MI 48226 

313-965-3330 

Grand Rapids 

1925 Breton Road SE  

Suite 100 

Grand Rapids, MI 49506 

616-454-4286 

Howell 

105 W. Grand River 

Howell, MI 48843 

517-552-9199 

Jackson 

401 S. Mechanic St. 

Suite B 

Jackson, MI 49201 

517-292-1295 

Kalamazoo 

834 King Highway 

Suite 107 

Kalamazoo, MI 49001 

269-665-2005 

Lansing 

215 S. Washington SQ 

Suite D 

Lansing, MI 48933 

517-292-1488 

Y:\202101\20210175\06_Corrs\20220408_rec_of_award.docx 

MAILING: PO Box 824 

Bloomfield Hills, MI  48303-0824 
 
SHIPPING: 555 Hulet Drive 

Bloomfield Hills, MI  48302-0360 
 
PHONE: 248-454-6300 

WEBSITE:  hrcengr.com 

April 8, 2022 
 
Village of Beverly Hills 
18500 W. 13 Mile Rd. 
Beverly Hills, MI 48025 
 
Attention:  Ms. Kristin Rutkowski, Interim Village Manager 
 
Re: Beverly Park Pathway Improvements Project                                                                       HRC Job No. 20210175 

Bid Results & Recommendation of Award 
 
Dear Ms. Rutkowski, 
 
Hubbell, Roth & Clark, Inc (HRC) has reviewed the bids received on April 5, 2022, for the subject project. There were three 
(3) bids received and publicly opened and read with the lowest responsive bid submitted by JSS – Macomb, LLC of Shelby 
Township, Michigan with an as-read bid of $47,174.10. Copies of the Bid Tab are enclosed for your reference and 
distribution.   
 

JSS – Macomb, LLC has satisfied the requirements of the specifications and has submitted all of the necessary information 
in order for the bid proposal to be considered complete and responsive.  JSS – Macomb, LLC. has also provided a 
performance record with information indicating that the contractor has successful completed jobs of similar scope.  Our 
office has reviewed the submitted performance record and found the information acceptable. 
 

Our office has contacted JSS – Macomb, LLC and they have indicated they are able to complete the project in accordance 
with the bid documents for the amount bid. As a result, we recommend award the Beverly Park Pathway Improvements 
Project construction contract to JSS – Macomb, LLC at a total amount of $47,174.10 subject to the Contractor supplying 
the requisite bonds and insurance certificates. 
 
If you have any questions or require any additional information, please contact the undersigned. 
 
Very truly yours, 
 
HUBBELL, ROTH & CLARK, INC. 

 
 
 
 

John Nagle, P.E.  
Project Engineer  
 
Attachment 
 
pc:   HRC; D. Mitchell, B. Shepler, File 
  
 



BID TABULATION

BEVERLY PARK PATHWAY IMPROVEMENTS

VILLAGE OF BEVERLY HILLS

OAKLAND COUNTY, MICHIGAN

11858 Forest Glen Lane 24500 23 Mile Rd 2650 Van Horn Rd.

Shelby Township, MI 48315 Chesterfield, MI 48047 Trenton, MI 48183

P (586) 709-6305 P (313) 480-7004 P (734) 234-9005 

F (586) 314-5050 F (586) 978-0920 F (734) 224-6672

Item Unit Price Total Cost Unit Price Total Cost Unit Price Total Cost

DIVISION I - CHELTON DRIVE 

1 Mobilization, Max 5% 1 LS $2,000.00 $2,000.00 $2,000.00 $2,000.00 $3,800.00 $3,800.00

2 Color Audio-Video Route Survey 1 LS $1,322.85 $1,322.85 $500.00 $500.00 $3,500.00 $3,500.00

3 Dr Structure, Rem 1 ea $644.00 $644.00 $3,050.00 $3,050.00 $1,500.00 $1,500.00

4 Culv, Rem, Less than 24 inch 30 lft $32.85 $985.50 * $38.00 $1,140.00 * $20.00 $600.00

5 Ditch Enclosure Pipe, 6 inch 221 lft $36.75 $8,121.75 $37.00 $8,177.00 $94.00 $20,774.00

6 Maintenance Basin, 24 inch Dia. 4 ea $1,600.00 $6,400.00 $1,400.00 $5,600.00 $3,100.00 $12,400.00

7 Trail Aggregate 250 ton $56.00 $14,000.00 $65.00 $16,250.00 $60.00 $15,000.00

8 Site Restoration 1 LS $3,900.00 $3,900.00 $9,750.00 $9,750.00 $7,500.00 $7,500.00

9 Soil Erosion and Sedimentation Control 1 LS $4,900.00 $4,900.00 $6,150.00 $6,150.00 $1,500.00 $1,500.00

10 Observation Crew Days days $700.00 $4,900.00 $700.00 $3,500.00 $700.00 $10,500.00

TOTAL AMOUNT OF BID $47,174.10 * $56,117.00 * $77,074.00

* Corrected By Engineer

ENGINEER: John Nagle, P.E.

Hubbell, Roth & Clark, Inc.

555 Hulet Drive  

Bloomfield Hills, MI  48302

Bids Due: 04/05/2022 at 11:00 am

HRC Job # 20210175

Quantity

Santoro Services LLC Gilbraltar Construction Co.JSS - Macomb, LLC

Y:\202101\20210175\04_Design\Final\Bidding\Bid_Docs\20210175_BidTab.xlsx

Page 1

4/8/2022



B2 
 

Village of Beverly Hills ● 18500 W. 13 Mile Road, Beverly Hills, MI 48025 ● 248-646-6404 

 

 

To: Honorable President George; Village Council Members 
 
From:  Kristin Rutkowski, Interim Village Manager/Village Clerk/Assistant Village Manager 
 
Subject: MDOT Resolution 
 
Date:   April 13, 2022 
 
Administration received correspondence from the Michigan Department of Transportation (MDOT) 

notifying us that an update to Form 2207B is required. As part of the Village’s general permit with MDOT, 

we are required to have a resolution (MDOT Form 2207B) on file. The municipal resolution satisfies the 

bond/insurance requirements for MDOT permit activities. 

MDOT Form 2207B (Performance Resolution for Municipalities) was updated in May 2021. The MDOT 

Attorney General’s Office is requiring that all municipalities who wish to continue permitting with MDOT 

submit a new resolution using the updated form. 

The proposed resolution was reviewed by the Village Attorney and was found to be in order.  

The entire resolution is attached.  
 
Suggested Resolution: 
Be it resolved, the Beverly Hills Village Council approves the Michigan Department of Transportation 
Performance Resolution for Municipalities (Form 2207B) as published.    



Michigan Department 
of Transportation

2207B (05/21) PERFORMANCE RESOLUTION FOR 
MUNICIPALITIES 

Page 1 of 2 

This Performance Resolution (Resolut ion) is required by the Michigan Department of Transportation for 

purposes of issuing to a Municipality an ''Individual Permit for Use of State Highway Right of Way'', and/or 

an ''Annual Application and Permit for Miscellaneous Operations within State Highway Right of Way''.

RESOLVED WHEREAS, the  
(County, City, Village, Township, etc.) 

hereinafter referred to as the ''MUNICIPALITY,'' periodically applies to the Michigan Department of 
Transportation, hereinafter referred to as the "DEPARTMENT," for permits, referred to as ''PERMIT,'' to 
construct, operate, use and/or maintain utilities or other facilities, or to conduct other activities, on, over, and 
under State Highway Right of Way at various locations within and adjacent to its corporate limits; 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the DEPARTMENT granting such PERMIT, the MUNICIPALITY 
agrees that: 

1. Each party to this Resolut ion shall remain responsible for any claims arising out of their own acts and/or
omissions during the performance of this Resolut ion , as provided by law. This Resolut ion is not
intended to increase either party's liability for, or immunity from, tort claims, nor shall it be interpreted,
as giving either party hereto a right of indemnification, either by Agreement or at law, for claims arising
out of the performance of this Agreement.

2. If any of the work performed for the MUNICIPALITY is performed by a contractor, the MUNICIPALITY shall
require its contractor to hold harmless, indemnify and defend in litigation, the State of Michigan, the
DEPARTMENT and their agents and employee’s, against any claims for damages to public or private
property and for injuries to person arising out of the performance of the work, except for claims that result
from the sole negligence or willful acts of the DEPARTMENT, until the contractor achieves final acceptance
of the MUNICIPALITY Failure of the MUNICIPALITY to require its contractor to indemnify the
DEPARTMENT, as set forth above, shall be considered a breach of its duties to the DEPARTMENT.

3. Any work performed for the MUNICIPALITY by a contractor or subcontractor will be solely as a contractor
for the MUNICIPALITY and not as a contractor or agent of the DEPARTMENT. The DEPARTMENT shall
not be subject to any obligations or liabilities by vendors and contractors of the MUNICIPALITY, or their
subcontractors or any other person not a party to the PERMIT without the DEPARTMENT’S specific prior
written consent and notwithstanding the issuance of the PERMIT. Any claims by any contractor or
subcontractor will be the sole responsibility of the MUNICIPALITY.

4. The MUNICIPALITY shall take no unlawful action or conduct, which arises either directly or indirectly out
of its obligations, responsibilities, and duties under the PERMIT which results in claims being asserted
against or judgment being imposed against the State of Michigan, the Michigan Transportation Commission,
the DEPARTMENT, and all officers, agents and employees thereof and those contracting governmental
bodies performing permit activities for the DEPARTMENT and all officers, agents, and employees
thereof, pursuant to a maintenance contract. In the event that the same occurs, for the purposes of the
PERMIT, it will be considered as a breach of the PERMIT thereby giving the State of Michigan, the
DEPARTMENT, and/or the Michigan Transportation Commission a right to seek and obtain any necessary
relief or remedy, including, but not by way of limitation, a judgment for money damages.

5. The MUNICIPALITY will, by its own volition and/or request by the DEPARTMENT, promptly restore and/or
correct physical or operating damages to any State Highway R ight of Way resulting from the
installation construction, operation and/or maintenance of the MUNICIPALITY’S facilities according to a
PERMIT issued by the DEPARTMENT.



6. With respect to any activities authorized by a PERMIT, when the MUNICIPALITY requires insurance on
its own or its contractor's behalf it shall also require that such policy include as named insured the State
of Michigan, the Transportation Commission, the DEPARTMENT, and all officers, agents, and employees
thereof and those governmental bodies performing permit activities for the DEPARTMENT and all
officers, agents, and employees thereof, pursuant to a maintenance contract.

7. The incorporation by the DEPARTMENT of this Resolution as part of a PERMIT does not prevent the
DEPARTMENT from requiring additional performance security or insurance before issuance of a
PERMIT.

8. This Resolution shall continue in force from this date until cancelled by the MUNICIPALITY or the
DEPARTMENT with no less than thirty (30) days prior written notice provided to the other party. It
will not be cancelled or otherwise terminated by the MUNICIPALITY with regard to any PERMIT which has
already been issued or activity which has already been undertaken.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the following position(s) are authorized to apply to the DEPARTMENT for 
the necessary permit to work within State Highway Right of Way on behalf of the MUNICIPALITY. 

Title and/or Name: 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a true copy of a resolution adopted by 

the   
(Name of Board, etc.)

of the  of 
(Name of MUNICIPALITY) (County) 

 meeting held on the _______day at a 

of ______________________ A.D. ________________. 

Print Signed Name

MDOT 2207B (05/21) Page 2 of 2 

 Title

Signed 



B3 
 

Village of Beverly Hills ● 18500 W. 13 Mile Road, Beverly Hills, MI 48025 ● 248-646-6404 

 

 

To: Honorable President George; Village Council Members 
 
From:  Kristin Rutkowski, Interim Village Manager/Village Clerk/Assistant Village Manager 
 
Subject: Engineering Services for Douglas Evans Parking Lot 
 
Date:   April 14, 2022 
 
As Council is aware, there have been a few discussions regarding a potential parking lot at Douglas Evans 
Nature Preserve. The Village engineering firm, Hubbell, Roth, & Clark, Inc. produced a preliminary drawing 
for a parking lot to show the stakeholders. Neither the heirs of the property owner who deeded the land 
to the Village nor the Water Resources Commission whose facility is located on the property are opposed 
to the addition of a small gravel parking lot. 
 
HRC has prepared a cost estimate for engineering services to move the project forward in the amount of 
$9,600. The proposal and preliminary drawing are attached. Administration is recommending approval of 
this expenditure.  
 
Suggested Resolution: 
Be it resolved, the Beverly Hills Village Council authorizes Hubbell, Roth, and Clark Inc. to provide 
engineering and design services for a parking lot at Douglas Evans Nature Preserve as outlined on the 
proposal dated April 14, 2022 in the amount of $9,600.00 from Account #101-751-943.50 (Parks - 
Engineering).   



 

Bloomfield Hills Delhi Township Detroit Grand Rapids Howell Jackson Kalamazoo Lansing Traverse City Troy 

Y:\202203\20220306\02_Proposal\Working_Docs\20220414_design_proposal_rev01.docx 
 

MAILING: PO Box 824 

Bloomfield Hills, MI  48303-0824 
 
SHIPPING: 555 Hulet Drive 

Bloomfield Hills, MI  48302-0360 
 
PHONE: 248-454-6300 

WEBSITE:  hrcengr.com 

April 14, 2022 
 

Village of Beverly Hills 
18500 W 13 Mile Road 
Beverly Hills, MI 48025 
 
Attn: Ms. Kristin Rutkowski, Interim Village Manager 
 
Re: Douglas-Evans Nature Preserve Gravel Parking Lot HRC Job No. 20220306.02 
 Engineering Services Proposal 
 
Dear Ms. Rutkowski: 
 
As requested, Hubbell, Roth & Clark, Inc. (HRC) is pleased to offer our engineering services for the subject project.  Our 
Scope of work is based on preliminary discussions with your office, extensive knowledge of the area and our experience 
designing similar projects.  In summary, HRC will develop contract bid documents for a gravel parking lot at the Douglas 
Evans Nature Preserve Property. 
 
A concept plan is shown in the attached Figure No. 1.  Tasks performed to complete the work are as follows: 
 

≡ Topographic survey and property line research 

≡ Development of detailed plans and specifications 

≡ Procurement of any required permits 

≡ Advertisement and bidding 

≡ Bid evaluation and recommendation for contract award 
 
We estimate the work will require 90 hours of services for a fee of $9,600.00. This fee will not be exceeded without prior 
authorization. Final plans and specifications will be complete within 60 days of Notice to Proceed. 
 
Note that construction engineering services are not included for the purposes of this proposal.  However, HRC would 
welcome the opportunity to provide these services once the contract has been awarded.  
 
If you have any questions or require any additional information, please contact the undersigned. 
 
Very truly yours, 
 
HUBBELL, ROTH & CLARK, INC. 
 
 
 
John Nagle, P.E.  
Project Engineer 
 
pc: HRC; D. Mitchell, B. Shepler, File 
 



JOB NO.

DATE

FIGURE NO.

555 HULET DRIVE
BLOOMFIELD HILLS, MICH.

P.O. BOX 824
48303-0824

VILLAGE OF BEVERLY HILLS
DOUGLAS-EVANS NATURE PRESERVE

PROPOSED GRAVEL PARKING LOT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIGN TO BE RELOCATED

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARKING BLOCK (TYP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROTECT TREE (TYP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
88 SQ YD

AutoCAD SHX Text
716 SQ YD

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED WRC GATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOTAL PARKING LOT AREA = 804 SQ YD

AutoCAD SHX Text
HANDICAP ACCESSIBLE ZONE

AutoCAD SHX Text
HRC_OLW_Clr.CTB

AutoCAD SHX Text
4/14/2022 2:13 PM

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y:\202200\20220002\03_Studies\Working\Douglas Evans parking Lot\Douglas Evans CAD Drawing.dwg

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESIGNED

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
2022 Hubbell, Roth and Clark, Inc. All Rights Reserved

AutoCAD SHX Text
20220002

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
FEB 2022

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1" = 30'



31805

31845

20220

20070

20046

20090

20130 20140
20150 20160

FI
G

U
R

E 
N

O
.

JO
B 

N
O

.

D
AT

E
55

5 
H

U
LE

T 
D

R
IV

E
BL

O
O

M
FI

EL
D

 H
IL

LS
, M

IC
H

.
P.

O
. B

O
X 

82
4

48
30

3-
08

24

VI
LL

AG
E 

O
F 

BE
VE

RL
Y 

HI
LL

S 
DO

U
GL

AS
-E

VA
N

S 
N

AT
U

RE
 P

RE
SE

RV
E 

PR
O

PO
SE

D 
GR

AV
EL

 P
AR

KI
N

G 
LO

T

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOTAL PRESERVE AREA = 18.951 ACRES  TOTAL PARKING AREA = 0.167 ACRES PARKING AFFECTS 0.89% OF PRESERVE AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text
OCWRC'S ACACIA PARK RTB

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED GRAVEL PARKING LOT

AutoCAD SHX Text
DOUGLAS EVANS PROPERTY LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DOUGLAS EVANS PROPERTY LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
HRC_OLW_Clr.CTB

AutoCAD SHX Text
2/2/2022 1:40 PM

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y:\202200\20220002\03_Studies\Working\Douglas Evans parking Lot\Douglas Evans CAD Drawing.dwg

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRINTED Nagle, Jack

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN

AutoCAD SHX Text
20220002

AutoCAD SHX Text
FEB 2022

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1" = 100'



Memorandum 

To: Honorable President George; Village Council 

CC: Kristin Rutkowski, Interim Village Manager; Tom Ryan, Village Attorney; 

Peggy Linkswiler, Treasurer  

From: Sheila McCarthy, Finance Director 

Date: April 14, 2022 

Re: FY 2022 Budget Amendments 

Attached are proposed FY 2022 Village of Beverly Hills Budget Amendments. 

In the Major and Local Road funds there are amendments for additional engineering services provided by 
HRC relating to general activity, Safe Routes to School, 14 Mile Road Improvement Program and Sidewalk 
Connector. The effect of the amendments is a net of revenue and expenditure decrease of $35,000 in Major 
Roads and $24,000 in Local Roads.  

In the Park Improvement fund there is an amendment for the Park Pathway. The effect of the amendment 
is a net of revenue and expenditure decrease of $48,000.  

In the Capital Fund there are amendments relating to the SCBA grant obtained by Public Safety. The net 
of revenue and expenditure increase is $174,605.  

These proposed FY 2022 Budget Amendments have been reviewed by Village Administration and are 
recommended for approval.  

Recommended Resolution 
Be it resolved that the Village of Beverly Hills Council authorizes Village Administration to transfer or adjust 
monies reserved in the Major Roads, Local Roads, Park Improvement Fund and Capital Fund as reflected 
in the April 14, 2022, memorandum from Finance Director, Sheila McCarthy. 

B4



Village of Beverly Hills

Proposed Budget Amendments to Council 4.19.22

FY 2022

a/c Fund Account Description

Amended Budget 

before 4.19.22 

Amendments Amendment

Amended Budget 

after 4.19.22 

Amendments

Major Road Fund Revenue Amendments

Net Revenue Amendment Increase (Decrease) -                            

Major Road Fund Expenditure Amendments

202-482-810.01 Major Engineering 40,000                     35,000                     75,000                     

Adjust to year to date activity with HRC for Major Roads, 

General $3k, Safe Routes to School $12k, 14 Mile Road 

Improvement Program $60k

Net Expenditure Amendment Increase (Decrease) 35,000                     

Net of Revenues & Expenditures (35,000)                    

Local Road Fund Revenue Amendments

Net Revenue Amendment Increase (Decrease) -                            

Local Road Fund Expenditure Amendments

203-482-810.01 Local Engineering 5,000                        24,000                     29,000                     
Adjust to year to date activity with HRC for Major Roads, 

General YTD is $1,600 and Sidewalk Connector is $27,000

Net Expenditure Amendment Decrease 24,000                     

Net of Revenues & Expenditures (24,000)                    

Park Improvement Revenue Amendments

Net Revenue Amendment Increase (Decrease) -                            -                            

Park Improvment Fund Expenditure Amendments

208-900-985.00 Park Improv Capital - Park Site Improvements 7,000                        48,000                     55,000                     To adj for Park Pathway in the amount of $47,174

Net Expenditure Amendment Decrease 48,000                     

Net of Revenues & Expenditures (48,000)                    

Capital Fund Revenue Amendments

401-000-505.02 Capital Public Safety Sofa Grant Received -                            159,540                   159,540                   

401-000-505.05 Capital FEMA AFG Grant Received -                            675,654                       675,654                   

Net Revenue Amendment Increase (Decrease) 835,194                   

Capital Fund Expenditure Amendments

401-905-981.05 Capital Capital - SCBA Purchase (Non Federal) 245,000                   (190,532)                  54,468                     

401-905-981.06 Capital Capital - FEMA SCBA Grant - Federal -                            15,927                     15,927                     

401-905-981.07 Capital SCBA - (Non Federal) 159,540                   159,540                   

401-905-981.08 Capital SCBA - FEMA - Federal 675,654                   675,654                   

Net Expenditure Amendment Decrease 660,589                   

Net of Revenues & Expenditures 174,605                   

Monies received and paid out relating to SCBA Grant. When 

budgeted the grant had not been obtained. The Village is 

acting as Administrator of the grant and therefore collects and 

pays out all funds. The net amount paid out by the Village is 

$71k.



Manager’s Report 

Village of Beverly Hills ● 18500 W. 13 Mile Road, Beverly Hills, MI 48025 ● 248-646-6404 

 

 

To: Honorable President George; Village Council Members 
 
From:  Kristin Rutkowski, Interim Village Manager/Village Clerk/Assistant Village Manager 
 
Subject: Manager’s Report 
 
Date:   April 14, 2022 
 
Water Quality Report 
The 2021 Consumers Annual Report on Water Quality is included in this packet. The Annual Report on 
Water Quality shows the sources of our water, lists the results of our tests, and contains important 
information about water and health. The report is also available to view at the Village Office or on the 
Village website.  
 
Community Funding Grant Opportunity 
Administration has been in contact with Congressman Levin’s Office (MI-09) regarding the submittal of 
two possible grant applications (a water main and service line replacement project and a pathways 
project) to determine which would be more likely to be funded by the Federal Community Funding Grant. 
Funding opportunities are limited and Congressman Levin may submit up to 15 projects to the 
Appropriations Committee for Community Project Funding consideration. We will keep Council informed 
on the progress of this opportunity.  
 
Compost 
Compost has been delivered by SOCRRA and is available to residents for free in the Village/Township 
parking lot.  
 
Good Friday 
The Village Office will be closed on Friday, April 15, 2022 in observance of Good Friday. Trash collection 
will not be interrupted.  



1 

 

VILLAGE OF BEVERLY HILLS 

 

RESOLUTION TO GO INTO CLOSED SESSION  

TO DISCUSS ATTORNEY-CLIENT PRIVILEGE  

MEMORANDUM RE: PUBLIC SAFETY DEPARTMENT  

PERSONNEL MATTER 

 

 

At a regular meeting of the Village Council, Oakland County, Michigan, held at the  

Village Office at 18500 W. Thirteen Mile Road, Beverly Hills, Michigan 48025, on the 19th day 

of April, 2022 at 7:30 p.m.  

 

 PRESENT: _______________________________________________________ 

 

         _______________________________________________________ 

 

 ABSENT:   _______________________________________________________ 

 

 The following Resolution was offered by _______________________________ with 

support from ___________________________ moves to adopt the following resolution: 

 

WHEREAS, at the regular City Council Meeting held on Tuesday, April 19, 2022, 

Village Council desires to go into closed session to discuss an Attorney-Client Privilege 

Memorandum dated April 8, 2022, regarding Public Safety Department personnel matter.  

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Village of Beverly Hills hereby agrees 

to meet in Closed Session, as permitted by the Open Meeting Act MCL 15.268(h) and MCL 

15.243(1)(g) and MCL 15.268(e) on Tuesday, April 19, 2022, at 7:30 p.m. immediately 

following the adjournment of the Regular Meeting held on Tuesday, April 19th, 2022 at 7:30 

p.m., Michigan Time, at the Village of Beverly Hills, 18500 W. Thirteen Mile Road, Beverly 

Hills, Michigan, 48025.  The purpose of the Closed Session is to discuss an Attorney-Client 

Privilege Memorandum dated April 8, 2022, regarding a Public Safety Department personnel 

matter, and to consult with the Village Attorney, Thomas J. Ryan.  

RESOLVED,  

 



2 

 

AYES: ________________________________________________________________ 

 

NAYES: ______________________________________________________________ 

 

ABSENT:  _____________________________________________________________ 

 

ABSTENTIONS: _______________________________________________________ 

 

 

RESOLUTION DECLARED ADOPTED. 

 

 

         ________________________________ 

         John George, President 

 

 

 

 

 

CERTIFICATION 

 

 I, Kristin Rutkowski, being the duly appointed and qualified Clerk of the Village of 

Beverly Hills, Oakland County, Michigan, do hereby certify and declare that the foregoing is a 

true and correct copy of a Resolution adopted by the Village Council of the Village of Beverly 

Hills at its regular meeting held on April 19, 2022. 

 

____________________________________ 

      Kristin Rutkowski, Village Clerk 

 

 



Beverly Hills Public Safety 
Activity Report 

March 24th- April 13th 2022   

 

• The Public Safety Department is currently 
looking for applicants for Public Safety 
Officer.  Please visit our website, 
www.beverlyhillspolice.com to see if you 
qualify. 

• Be safe as the weather gets better and look 
out for children/adults on their bikes. 

 

 

o CALLS FOR SERVICE 

•   298 Calls for Service. 

•   126 Tickets issued. 

•   18 Arrests  

• A driver was stopped for an improper license plate on 
14 Mile and Edgewood. The driver admitted that he 
had taken the plate from another vehicle and attached 
it to this unregistered vehicle. The driver was Issued a 
misdemeanor citation and released at the scene & the 
vehicle was impounded. 

• Operation Medicine Cabinet. 

• Medical on Embassy Drive. 

• Radar Detail on Gould and Southfield. 

• Beverly School student pick up. 

• Gun Permit Issued. 

• Informational Report made at Groves High School. 

• Car Seat Installed at the station. 

• Suspicious Circumstances on Bedford Street. 

• Assisted Royal Oak PD for a male that fled on foot in 
the area of 13 Mile and Greenfield. 

• Greenfield School checked after hours. 

• Woodside Athletic Club checked after hours. 

• Traffic Accident with a deer at Lahser and Orchard 
Way. 

• Suspicious Person on Vernon Drive. 

• Alarm on Woodhaven Street. 

http://www.beverlyhillspolice.com/


• Assist Motorist on Southfield and Beverly. 

• Operation Medicine Cabinet. 

• Medical on Chelsea Place. 

• Noise Complaint in Huntley Square Apartments. 

• Traffic Accident at Groves High School. 

• Road Hazard on Riverside and Evergreen. 

• Civil Matter in Huntley Square Apartments. 

• Traffic Enforcement at Norwood and Riverside. 

• Woodside Athletic Club checked after hours. 

• Another Extra Patrol at Woodside. 

• Medical on Marimoor Drive. 

• Woodside Athletic Club extra patrol. 

• Traffic Enforcement at 14 Mile and Southfield. 

• Citizen Assist at Riverside and Beverly. 

• Juvenile Complaint at Beverly Park. 

• Radar Detail at Evergreen and Waltham. 

• Medical on 13 Mile Road. 

• Medical on West Valley Woods. 

• Larceny Report taken on 13 Mile Road. 

• Suspicious Circumstance on 13 Mile Road. 

• Woodside Athletic Club extra patrol. 

• Fraud Report on Eastlady Drive. 

• Traffic Enforcement at Auburn and Beverly. 

• Medical in Huntley Square Apartments. 

• Acacia Cemetery checked after hours. 

• A driver was stopped for speeding and he showed 
signs of intoxication at 13 Mile and Eldridge. The 
driver failed sobriety tests and failed to disclose that 
he had a concealed weapon in the car. The driver 
was arrested without incident and transported to 
Birmingham PD for detoxification. 

• Barking Dog Complaint on Sunset and Waltham. 

• Traffic Enforcement on Evergreen and Wilshire. 

• Welfare Check at Mission Point. 

• Commercial Alarm on Southfield Road. 

• Medical on Chelsea Place. 

• Beverly Park Checked after hours. 

• Fire Truck Inspections at the station. 

• Acacia Cemetery checked after hours. 

• Radar Detail on Southfield Road. 

• Extra Patrol Request at Get Some Fitness. 

• Radar Detail on Lahser and Metamora. 

• Beverly Park checked after hours. 

• Radar Detail on Hillview and Lahser. 



• Traffic Detail on Lahser and Stafford. 

• A driver was stopped for an expired license plate at 
Lahser and Stafford. It was discovered the driver had 
a suspended license and the vehicle was impounded. 
The driver was cited and released at the scene. 

• Suspicious Person on Riverside. 

• Medical in Huntley Square Apartments. 

• Welfare Check requested on Birwood Street. 

• Woodside Athletic Club extra patrol. 

• Public Relations request for Carbon Monoxide and 
Smoke Detector inspections at residence. 

• Lift Assist on Plantation Lane. 

• Radar Detail on 14 Mile Road. 

• Handicap Parking Complaint at Market Fresh. 

• Medical on Village Drive. 

• Suspicious Person on Locherbie and Pierce. 

• Radar Detail on Lahser and 13 Mile Road. 

• Suspicious Circumstance at 13 and Southfield. 

• Traffic Enforcement at 14 Mile and Southfield. 

• Extra Patrol in the area of Dunblaine and Birmingham. 

• Extra Patrol in the area of Edgewood and Birwood. 

• Groves High School checked after hours. 

• Reckless Driver Report at Southfield and Beverly. 

• Welfare Check on Mayfair Lane. 

• Radar Detail on Hillview and Lahser. 

• A driver was stopped for an expired plate at 13 Mile 
and Lahser. The driver was found to be suspended 
and the vehicle was impounded. The driver was cited 
and released at the scene without incident. 

• Sub Check in the Nottingham subdivision. 

• Radar Detail on 14 Mile Road. 

• Solicitor Complaint at 13 Mile and Southfield. 

• Juvenile Complaint of two kids shooting an airsoft rifle 
at a bottle on the fence near the water tower. The kids 
were turned over to their parents. 

• Traffic Enforcement at Beverly and Southfield. 

• Beverly Park checked after hours. 

• Radar Detail on Southfield Road. 

• Radar Detail on Lahser and 13 Mile. 

• Extra Patrol at the Corners Shopping Mall after hours. 

• Sub Check in the Ronsdale subdivision. 

• Sub Check on Stellamar and 13 Mile area. 

• Extra Patrol at Beverly School after hours. 



• An occupied suspicious vehicle was located in the 
parking lot Penn Station Subs after hours. The driver 
was discovered to be suspended indefinitely and they 
were cited and released at the scene without incident. 

• Extra Patrol at Market Fresh after hours. 

• Fire Alarm on Village Drive. 

• Radar Detail on 13 Mile and Churchill. 

• Suspicious Vehicle on 13 Mile Road. 

• Radar Detail on Beverly Road. 

• 911 Hang Up the Corners Shopping Mall. 

• Suspicious Circumstances on Waltham Street. 

• Improper Vehicle License Plate confiscated on 13 
Mile Road and Stellamar. 

• Beverly Park checked after hours. 

• Radar Detail on Evergreen and 13 Mile. 

• A driver was stopped for failing to dim their lights in 
the rain at Greenfield and Beverly Court. The driver 
was found to be suspended and the vehicle was 
impounded. The driver was arrested and then cited & 
released at the scene. 

• Extra Patrol at Acacia cemetery after hours. 

• Flee & Elude from an attempted drunk driving traffic 
stop at Lahser and 14 Mile Road. The pursuit was 
terminated with no injuries or damage. 

•  Medical on Marimoor Drive. 

• Suspicious Circumstances on Eastlady Drive. 

• Tree down across Buckingham assisted DPW. 

• Two Car Hit and Run traffic accident on Southfield 
and 13 Mile Road. 

• Wires Down on Hampstead Street. 

• Road Hazard traffic sign across 14 Mile and 
Southfield. 

• Operation Medicine Cabinet. 

• Reckless Driving report on Southfield and 13 Mile. 

• Suspicious Person on Bedford Street. 

• Report of an Assault taken at the station. 

• Alarm on Greenfield Road. 

• Alarm on Lost Hollow Street. 

• Alarm on Riverside Drive. 

• Traffic Enforcement on 13 Mile and Evergreen. 

• Traffic Accident on 13 Mile and Marlin Court. 

• Radar Detail on Waltham and Evergreen. 

• Radar Detail on Saxon and Beaconsfield. 

• Traffic Complaint unsafe driver at Groves High 
School. 



• Radar Detail on Lahser and 13 Mile. 

• A traffic stop was made for an expired license plate at 
Bates and Locherbie, inside the vehicle were four 
occupants. Each occupant was arrested for several 
separate charges including: Possession of Cocaine, 
Possession of Narcotics Paraphernalia, and Driving 
While License Suspended. All arrested were taken 
into custody without incident. 

• Animal Complaint on Locherbie. 

• Sub Check in the area of Locherbie and Birmingham. 

• Suspicious Person on Southfield and Beverly. 

• Suspicious Vehicle on 14 Mile and Pierce. 

• Extra Patrol in the area of Birmingham and Beverly. 

• Beverly Park Checked after hours. 

• Medical on Dunblaine Street. 

• Animal Complaint on Birwood. 

• Radar Detail on 14 Mile Road. 

• Medical on Kennoway Circle. 

• Retail Fraud on Southfield Road. 

• Operation Medicine Cabinet. 

• Larceny Report at Mission Point. 

• Suspicious Vehicle on Southfield Road. 

• Medical on Evergreen Road. 

• Suspicious Person on 14 Mile and Shipman. 

• Suspicious Person on Riverside Drive. 

• Extra Patrol at Medical Village after hours. 

• Extra Patrol at 14 Mile and Bates after hours. 

• Medical on Elizabeth Street. 

• Suspicious Vehicles on Bellvine and 14 Mile. 

• Fire Truck Checks at the station. 

• Parking Complaint on Buckingham. 

• Suspicious Person on Sheridan Drive. 

• Extra Patrol by request on Wilshire Drive. 

• Extra Patrol at Groves High School after hours. 

• A traffic stop was made for fail to signal and improper 
lane use at Pierce and Kirkshire. The driver was 
found to be suspended with multiple warrants. The 
driver was arrested without incident then cited and 
released at the scene. 

• Animal Complaint on Reedmere Street. 

• A traffic stop was made for improper turning at 
Southfield and Beverly. The driver was arrested 
without incident for outstanding warrants and turned 
over to Troy PD. 

• Fire training at the station. 



• A driver was stopped for speeding at Southfield and 
13 Mile. The driver was found to not having ever 
obtained a driver’s license and was arrested without 
incident. The vehicle was turned over to a valid driver 
and the driver was cited and released at the scene. 

• Suspicious Person in Huntley Square Apartments. 

• Traffic Enforcement at Southfield and Beverly. 

• Greenfield School student drop off. 

• Solicitor Complaint on Weston Drive. 

• Vehicle Lockout at Beverly Park. 

• Suspicious Circumstances on Dunblaine Street. 

• Greenfield School student pick up. 

• Assist Bloomfield Township PD with Accident at 14 
Mile and Lahser. 

• Traffic Accident at 13 Mile and Fairfax. 

• Welfare Check in Huntley Square Apartments. 

• Hospice Death on Kennoway Circle. 

• Beverly Park Check after hours. 

• Radar Detail on Evergreen and 13 Mile. 

• Extra Patrol at Acacia Cemetery after hours. 

• Suspicious Person at 13 Mile and Fairfax. 

• Neighborhood Trouble in Huntley Square Apartments. 

• Crossing Guard Detail at Beverly School. 

• Medical on Beechwood Street. 

• Traffic Accident at 13 Mile and Southfield. 

• Identity Theft report on Sunset Court. 

• Reckless Driving complaint on 13 Mile and Southfield. 

• Informational Report taken on Warwick Street. 

• Vehicle Lockout on Evergreen Road. 

• Medical on Coryell Drive. 

• Crossing Guard Detail at Beverly School. 

• Traffic Accident at Groves High School. 

• Medical on Kennoway Circle. 

• Animal Complaint on Bellvine Trail. 

• Traffic Enforcement on Southfield and Gould Court. 

• Radar Detail on Evergreen and 13 Mile. 

• Beverly Park Check after hours. 

• A driver had passed out behind the wheel at Lahser 
and 13 Mile. The driver was found to be intoxicated 
and failed multiple sobriety tests. The driver was 
arrested without incident and the vehicle was 
impounded. The driver was transported to 
Birmingham PD for detoxification without incident. 

• Greenfield School student drop off. 



• Crossing Guard Detail at Beverly School. 

• Traffic Enforcement at Wilshire and Evergreen. 

•  Groves High School student drop off. 

• Traffic Enforcement Norchester and Beverly. 

• Alarm on Dunblaine Street. 

• Traffic Enforcement at Birmingham and Beverly. 

• Suspicious Person on East Rutland. 

• Open investigation of Assault at Beverly Park. 

• Fraud Report taken on Kirkshire Street. 

• Berkshire School student pick up. 

• Vehicle Lockout at Groves High School. 

• Gun Permit Issued at the station. 

• Crossing Guard Detail at Beverly School. 

• Queen Of Martyrs student pick up. 

• Traffic Accident on Lahser and 14 Mile Road. 

• Retail Fraud at Market Fresh. 

• Animal Complaint on 13 Mile Road. 

• Traffic Offense initiated at 13 Mile and Greenfield. 

• Beverly Park Check after hours. 

• Groves High School checked after hours. 

• A driver was stopped for a headlight out at Southfield 
and Gould Court. The driver was found to be 
suspended with outstanding warrants. The driver was 
arrested without incident and advised by the other 
jurisdiction on the warrants. The driver was cited and 
released and the vehicle impounded. 

• Radar Detail on Lahser and Hillview. 

• Sub Check in the Rutland Subdivision. 

• Traffic Enforcement on 13 Mile. 

• Sub Check in the area of Chelton and Walmer. 

• Animal Complaint on 14 Mile. 

• Crossing Guard Detail at Beverly School. 

• Embezzlement Report on Southfield Road. 

• Alarm on Meadow Lane. 

• Extra Patrol requested on Devonshire Street. 

• Radar Detail on Evergreen and 13 Mile. 

• Berkshire School checked after hours. 

• Operation Medicine Cabinet. 

• Crossing Guard Detail at Beverly School. 

• Suspicious Person on Plumwood Street. 

• Medical on Marimoor Street. 

• Suspicious Circumstances at Beverly School. 

• Berkshire School checked after hours. 



• A vehicle attempted to Flee & Elude officers after a 
traffic stop was initiated. The driver lead officers from 
Beverly Hills and Birmingham PD on a quick chase in 
the area of 14 Mile and Pierce. The suspect vehicle 
was stopped by the use of stop sticks and the driver 
then fled on foot. The driver was then resisted and 
fought with officers before being tased and arrested. 

• Medical on Pierce and Wetherby. 

• Crossing Guard Detail at Beverly School. 

• Medical at the station. 

• Suspicious Person on 13 Mile and Churchill. 

• Medical in Huntley Square Apartments. 

• Lift Assist on Norwood Drive. 

• Crossing Guard Detail at Beverly School. 

• Suspicious Person on Wellesley Blvd. 

• Animal Complaint on Warwick Street. 

• Radar Detail on Evergreen and 13 Mile. 

• Beverly Park checked after hours. 

• Reckless Driving Complaint at Lahser and 13 Mile. 

• Suspicious Circumstances at Beverly Park. 

• Acacia Cemetery checked after hours. 

• Suspicious Person on Evergreen and 13 Mile. 

• Medical on 14 Mile Road. 

• Medical on Southfield Road. 

• Alarm on Camelot Court. 

• Suspicious Circumstances on Buckingham Street. 

• Retail fraud at Ace Hardware. 

• Commercial Alarm on Southfield. 

• Suspicious Circumstances on 13 Mile and Southfield. 

• Fraud Report taken on Churchill Drive. 

• Suspicious Person on East Rutland. 

• Medical on Hampton Street. 

• Medical on Normandale Street. 

• Suspicious Person at Mission Point. 

• Court Ordered PBT at the station. 

• Medical on Amherst Street. 

• Residential Lockout on Valley Oaks Drive. 

• A traffic stop was made on a vehicle without an 
attached license plate at Buckingham and Southfield. 
The driver was found to be suspended and the 
vehicle was impounded. The driver was arrested and 
then cited & released at the scene without incident. 

• Radar Detail on Lahser and 14 Mile. 

• Beverly Park checked after hours. 



• Assisted Royal Oak PD by request with a large fight in 
progress at the Morrie Restaurant. 

• Traffic Accident at Rutland and Marguerite. 

• Fire Truck Checks at the station. 

• Parking Complaint on Sunset Court. 

• Commercial Alarm on Southfield Road. 

• Traffic Enforcement on 13 Mile Road. 

• Extra Patrol at Beverly Park. 

• Animal Complaint at Elizabeth and Pierce. 

• Medical on Stratford Drive. 

• Suspicious Person at Groves High School after hours. 

• Greenfield School student drop off. 

• Beverly School student drop off. 

• Crossing Guard Detail at Beverly School. 

• Radar Detail at Hillview and Lahser. 

• Operation Medicine Cabinet. 

• Traffic Enforcement at Beaconsfield and Riverside. 

• Radar Detail at Lahser and Riverview. 

• Beverly Park Check extra patrol. 

• Extra Patrol request on Dunblaine. 

• Radar Detail at Evergreen and Waltham. 

• Medical on Lahser Road. 

• Radar Detail at Stafford and 13 Mile. 

• Traffic Detail at Beverly and Southfield. 

• Beverly School student pick up. 

• Berkshire School student pick up. 

• Medical on Fiddlers Cove. 

• A driver was stopped for speeding at Southfield and 
14 Mile. The driver was found to be intoxicated after 
failing multiple sobriety tests and arrested for 
Operating While Under the Influence of Alcohol. The 
vehicle was impounded and the subject was 
transported to Birmingham PD for detoxification 
without incident. 

• Sub Check in the area of Turnberry and Lahser. 

• Sub Check in the area of Village Pines and Lahser. 

• Radar Detail at Southfield and 13 Mile. 

• Traffic Enforcement at 14 Mile and Southfield. 

• Beverly School student drop off. 

• Radar Detail at 13 Mile and Churchill. 

• Extra Patrol at Berkshire School. 

• Extra Patrol at Groves High School. 

• Medical on Marimoor Street. 

• Suspicious Person on Beverly Road. 



• Operation Medicine Cabinet. 

• Traffic Enforcement at Birmingham and Beverly. 

• Beverly School student pick up. 

• Parking Complaint at Beverly Park. 

• Suspicious Person at 13 Mile and Lahser. 

• Suspicious Person at Beverly and Pierce. 

• Citizen Assist on Amherst Street. 

• Family Trouble on West Rutland Street. 
 
DETECTIVE BUREAU AND SCHOOL LIAISON 
 

• Sgt Baller ICS Training. 

• Criminal sexual conduct investigation. 

• Arraignment on Criminal sexual conduct suspect. 

• Detective Bureau is investigating a complaint which 
was given to them by Southfield Police. The original 
investigation started out in Detroit where a women 
allegedly stabbed her baby.  As the investigation 
unfolded it was given to Southfield Police because of 
the venue.  It was then learned the venue was at 
Beverly Park.  Subject is currently at the forensic center 
and the baby is alive and well.  Officers put together a 
long investigation along with the other two agencies 
and are seeking warrants at this time.   

• Property items checked with evidence cases. 

• Oakland county Pros office seeking warrants. 

• In custody Flee and eluding arraignment. 

• Suspicious circumstance investigation (threats) at 
Groves. 

• Suspicious circumstances investigation (threats) at 
Berkshire middle school. 

• Care House interview. WA interview curfew, 
possession of marijuana violation 

 
 
FIRE MARSHAL AND TRAINING REPORTS 
 

• Continued night time training. 

• Continued SCBA training 

• Continued fire training. 

• Continued equipment checks. 
 
 
 



 
 

VILLAGE OF BEVERLY HILLS 
 

2021 CONSUMERS ANNUAL REPORT  
ON WATER QUALITY 

 
ATTENTION: THIS IS AN IMPORTANT REPORT  

ON WATER QUALITY AND SAFETY 
 

The Village of Beverly Hills, The Southeastern Oakland County Water Authority (SOCWA) and the Great 
Lakes Water Authority (GLWA) are proud of the fine drinking water they supply and are honored to provide this 
report to you. The 2021 Consumers Annual Report on Water Quality shows the sources of our water, lists the 
results of our tests, and contains important information about water and health. We will notify you 
immediately if there is ever any reason for concern about our water. We are pleased to show you how we 
have surpassed water quality standards as mandated by the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) and the 
Michigan Department of Environment, Great Lakes, and Energy (EGLE). 
 

About the System 

The Village of Beverly Hills purchases water from the Southeastern Oakland County Water Authority 
(SOCWA) at two locations.  SOCWA provides GLWA water through its member distribution systems to a 
population of 210,000 within a 56 square mile area.  Current members are Berkley, Beverly Hills, Bingham 
Farms, Birmingham, Clawson, Huntington Woods, Lathrup Village, Pleasant Ridge, Royal Oak, Southfield, 
and Southfield Township. 

 
Your source water comes from the Detroit River, situated within the Lake St. Clair, Clinton River, Detroit River, 

Rouge River, Ecorse River, watersheds in the U.S. and parts of the Thames River, Little River, Turkey Creek 

and Sydenham watersheds in Canada.  The Michigan Department of Environmental Quality in partnership with 

the U.S. Geological Survey, the Detroit Water and Sewerage Department, and the Michigan Public Health 

Institute performed a source water assessment in 2004 to determine the susceptibility of GLWA’s Detroit River 

source water for potential contamination. The susceptibility rating is based on a seven-tiered scale and ranges 

from very low to very high determined primarily using geologic sensitivity, water chemistry, and potential 

contaminant sources. The report described GLWA’s Detroit River intakes as highly susceptible to potential 

contamination. GLWA’s water treatment plants that draw water from the Detroit River has historically provided 

satisfactory treatment and meets drinking water standards. 

GLWA has initiated source-water protection activities that include chemical containment, spill response, and a 

mercury reduction program. GLWA participates in the National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System permit 

discharge program and has an emergency response management plan. In 2021, the Michigan Department of 

Environmental, Great Lakes and Energy approved the GLWA’s Updated Surface Water Intake Protection plan 

for the Belle Isle intake. The plan has seven elements that include: roles and duties of government units and 

water supply agencies, delineation of a source water protection areas, identification of potential sources of 

contamination, management approaches for protection, contingency plans, siting of new water sources, public 

participation, and public education activities. If you would like to know more information about the Source Water 

Assessment Report, please, contact GLWA at (313 926-8102). 

And/or  

Your source water comes from the lower Lake Huron watershed. The watershed includes numerous short, 

seasonal streams that drain to Lake Huron. The Michigan Department of Environmental Quality in partnership 

with the U.S. Geological Survey, the Detroit Water and Sewerage Department, and the Michigan Public Health 

Institute performed a source water assessment in 2004 to determine the susceptibility of potential 

contamination.  The susceptibility rating is a seven-tiered scale ranging from “very low” to “very high” based 

primarily on geologic sensitivity, water chemistry, and contaminant sources. The Lake Huron source water 

intake is categorized as having a moderately low susceptibility to potential contaminant sources. The Lake 



 
 

Huron water treatment plant has historically provided satisfactory treatment of this source water to meet 

drinking water standards. 

In 2021, the Michigan Department of Environmental, Great Lakes and Energy approved GLWA’s updated 

Surface Water Intake Protection plans for the Lake Huron water intake. The plan has seven elements: roles and 

duties of government units and water supply agencies, delineation of a source water protection areas, 

identification of potential sources of contamination, management approaches for protection, contingency plans, 

siting of new water sources, public participation, and public education activities. If you would like to know more 

information about the Source Water Assessment Report, please, contact GLWA at (313 926-8102). 

 

Drinking water, including bottled water, may reasonably be expected to contain at least small amounts 
of some contaminants. The presence of contaminants does not necessarily indicate that water poses 
a health risk. More information about contaminants and potential health effects can be obtained by 
calling the Environmental Protection Agency’s Safe Drinking Water Hotline (800-426-4791). 
 
The sources of drinking water (both tap water and bottled water) include rivers, lakes, streams, ponds, 
reservoirs, springs, and wells.  As water travels over the surface of the land or through the ground, it can 
dissolve naturally occurring minerals and, in some cases, radioactive materials, and can pick up substances 
resulting from the presence of animals or from human activity.   
 
Contaminants that may be present in source water include: 
 

Microbial contaminants, such as viruses and bacteria, which may come from sewage treatment plants, 
septic systems, agricultural livestock operations, and wildlife. 
 
Inorganic contaminants, such as salts and metals, which can be naturally occurring or result from 
urban storm water runoff, industrial or domestic wastewater discharge, oil and gas production, mining, 
or farming. 
 
Pesticides and herbicides, which may come from a variety of sources such as agriculture, urban storm 
water runoff, and residential uses. 
 
Organic chemical contaminants, including synthetic and volatile organic chemicals, which are by-
products of industrial processes and petroleum production, and can also come from gas stations, 
urban storm water runoff and septic systems. 
 
Radioactive contaminants, which can be naturally occurring or be the result of oil and gas production 
and mining activities.   

 
In order to ensure that tap water is safe to drink, EPA prescribes regulations, which limit the amount of certain 
contaminants in the water provided by public water systems.  The Food and Drug Administration (FDA) 
regulations establish limits for contaminants in bottled water, which must provide the same protection for public 
health. 
 

 

  



 
 

Key to the Detected Contaminants Table 

Symbol Abbreviation Definition/Explanation 

Symbol Abbreviation Definition/Explanation 

AL Action Level 
The concentration of a contaminant, which, if exceeded, 
triggers treatment or other requirements which a water system 
must follow. 

°C Celsius 
A scale of temperature in which water freezes at 0° and boils at 
100° under standard conditions. 

> Greater than  

HAA5 Haloacetic Acids 
HAA5 is the total of bromoacetic, chloroacetic, Dibromoacetic, 
dichloroacetic, and trichloroacetic acids. Compliance is based 
on the total. 

Level 1  Level 1 Assessment 
A Level 1 assessment is a study of the water system to identify 
potential problems and determine (if possible) why total coliform 
bacteria have been found in the water system. 

LRAA Locational Running Annual Average 
The average of analytical results for samples at a particular 
monitoring location during the previous four quarters. 

MCL Maximum Contaminant Level 
The highest level of a contaminant that is allowed in drinking 
water.  MCLs are set as close to the MCLGs as feasible using 
the best available treatment technology. 

MCLG Maximum Contaminant Level Goal 
The level of contaminant in drinking water below which there is 
no known or expected risk to health. 

MRDL Maximum Residual Disinfectant Level 
The highest level of disinfectant allowed in drinking water.  
There is convincing evidence that addition of a disinfectant is 
necessary for control of microbial contaminants. 

MRDLG 
Maximum Residual Disinfectant Level 
Goal 

The level of a drinking water disinfectant below which there is 
no known or expected risk to health.  MRLDG’s do not reflect 
the benefits of the use of disinfectants to control microbial 
contaminants. 

n/a not applicable  

ND Not Detected  

NTU Nephelometric Turbidity Units Measures the cloudiness of water. 

pCi/L Picocuries Per Liter A measure of radioactivity 

ppb Parts Per Billion (one in one billion) 
The ppb is equivalent to micrograms per liter. 
A microgram = 1/1000 milligram. 

ppm Parts Per Million (one in one million) 
The ppm is equivalent to milligrams per liter. 
A milligram = 1/1000 gram. 

RAA Running Annual Average 
The average of analytical results for all samples during the 
previous four quarters. 

SMCL Secondary Maximum Contaminant Level 

An MCL which involves a biological, chemical or physical 
characteristic of water that may adversely affect the taste, odor, 
color or appearance (aesthetics), which may thereby affect 
public confidence or acceptance of the drinking water. 

TT Treatment Technique 
A required process intended to reduce the level of a 
contaminant in drinking water. 

TTHM Total Trihalomethanes 
Total Trihalomethanes is the sum of chloroform, 
bromodichloromethane, dibromochloromethane and 
bromoform. Compliance is based on the total. 

μmhos Micromhos Measure of electrical conductance of water 

 

 

 

 
 

 



 
 

2021 Springwells Regulated Detected Contaminants Table 
2021 Inorganic Chemicals - Annual Monitoring at Plant Finished Tap 

Regulated 
Contaminant 

Test Date Unit 
Health 
Goal 

MCLG 

Allowed 
Level 
MCL 

Highest 
Level 

Detected 

Range of 
Detection 

Violation Major Sources in Drinking Water 

Fluoride 04/13/2021 ppm 4 4 0.52 n/a no 

Erosion of natural deposit; Water 
additive, which promotes strong teeth; 
Discharge from fertilizer and aluminum 
factories. 

Nitrate 04/13/2021 ppm 10 10 0.34 n/a no 
Runoff from fertilizer use; Leaching 
from septic tanks, sewage; Erosion of 
natural deposits. 

Barium 05/16/2017 ppm 2 2 0.01 n/a no 
Discharge of drilling wastes; Discharge 
from metal refineries; Erosion of 
natural deposits. 

 
 

2021 Disinfection Residual - Monitoring in the Distribution System 

Regulated 
Contaminant 

Test 
Date 

Unit 
Health 
Goal 

MRDLG 

Allowed 
Level 
MRDL 

Highest 
Level 
RAA 

Range of 
Quarterly 
Results 

Violation Major Sources in Drinking Water 

Total Chlorine Residual 2021 ppm 4 4 0.69 0.59-0.76 no Water additive used to control microbes 

 
 

2021 Turbidity - Monitored Every 4 Hours at the Plant Finished Water Tap 

Highest Single 
Measurement Cannot 

Exceed 1 NTU 

Lowest Monthly % of Samples Meeting 
Turbidity Limit of 0.3 NTU (minimum 95%) 

Violation Major Sources in Drinking Water 

0.20 NTU 100% no Soil Runoff 

GLWA is required to monitor your drinking water for specific contaminants on a regular basis.  Results of 
regular monitoring are an indicator of whether our drinking water meets health standards.  We routinely monitor 
your water for turbidity (cloudiness). This tells us whether we are effectively filtering the water supply. We did 
not produce a filter profile for EGLE review within 7 days of an August 1, 2021, individual filter exceedance at 
the GLWA Springwells Water Treatment Plant as required by law.  A filter profile is a summary of the turbidity 
and flow through the filter and is used to identify any trends in filter performance. 
 
*Turbidity has no health effects. However, turbidity can interfere with disinfection and provide a medium for 
microbial growth. Turbidity may indicate the presence of disease-causing organisms. These organisms include 
bacteria, viruses, and parasites which can cause symptoms such as nausea, cramps, diarrhea, and associated 
headaches. *  These symptoms are not caused only by organisms in drinking water. If you experience any of 
these symptoms and they persist, you may want to seek medical advice. 
 

What should I do?  There is nothing you need to do currently.  This is not an emergency.  You do 
not need to boil water or use an alternative source of water currently.  Even though this is not an 
emergency, as our customers, you have a right to know what happened and what we did to correct the 
situation. 
 
What happened?  What is being done?  The filter profile has since been produced and submitted to EGLE 
and additional response actions have been implemented at the plant.  We are making every effort to ensure 
this does not happen again.   
 
Please share this information with all the other people who drink this water, especially those who may not have 
received this notice directly (for example, people in apartments, nursing homes, schools, and businesses). You 



 
 

can do this by posting this notice in a public place or distributing copies by hand or mail. This notice is being 
sent to you by GLWA. 
 
For more information, please contact the Water Quality Manager, at 313 926-8102 
 
 

2021 Special Monitoring 

Contaminant Test Date Unit MCLG MCL Highest Level Detected Source of Contaminant 

Sodium  04/13/2021 ppm n/a n/a 4.36 Erosion of natural deposits 

 
Regulated 

Contaminant 
Treatment Technique Typical Source of Contaminant 

Total Organic Carbon ppm 

The Total Organic Carbon (TOC) removal ratio is calculated as 
the ratio between the actual TOC removal and the TOC removal 
requirements.  The TOC is measured each quarter and because 
the level is low, there is no requirement for TOC removal. 

Erosion of natural deposits 

These tables are based on tests conducted by GLWA in the year 2021 or the most recent testing done within the last five calendar years. GLWA 
conducts tests throughout the year only tests that show the presence of a substance or require special monitoring are presented in these tables. 
The State allows us to monitor for certain contaminants less than once per year because the concentrations of these contaminants are not 
expected to vary significantly from year to year. The data is representative of the water quality, but some are more than one year old. 

 
2021 Springwells Tap Water Mineral Analysis 

Parameter Units Max. Min. Avg.  Parameter Units Max. Min. Avg. 

Turbidity NTU 0.12  0.03  0.07  Phosphorus ppm 0.67  0.37  0.50  

Total Solids ppm 174  94  135  Free Carbon Dioxide ppm 12.1  8.8  10.2  

Total Dissolved Solids ppm 146  75  120  Total Hardness ppm 106  82  99  

Aluminum ppm 0.082  0.012  0.037  Total Alkalinity ppm 76  64  70  

Iron ppm 0.3  0.1  0.2  Carbonate Alkalinity ppm 0  0  0  

Copper ppm 0.003  ND 0.000  Bi-Carbonate Alkalinity ppm 76  64  70  

Magnesium ppm 8.3  6.1  7.3  Non-Carbonate Hardness ppm 35  18  29  

Calcium ppm 29.1  21.3  25.1  Chemical Oxygen Demand ppm 3.3  ND 1.5  

Sodium ppm 8.4  4.4  5.3  Dissolved Oxygen ppm 13.4  8.9  10.9  

Potassium ppm 1.3  0.8  1.0  Nitrite Nitrogen ppm ND ND 0.0  

Manganese ppm 0.004  ND 0.000  Nitrate Nitrogen ppm 0.45  0.23  0.32  

Lead ppm ND ND 0.000  Fluoride ppm 0.71  0.38  0.55  

Zinc ppm 0.001  ND 0.000  pH  7.20  7.07  6.54  

Silica ppm 2.8  1.8  2.2  
Specific Conductance @ 25 
°C 

μmhos 
238  191  224  

Sulfate ppm 32.0  22.6  25.9  Temperature °C 24.3  3.7  14.5  

Chloride ppm 12.9  8.9  10.4       

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

2021 Northeast Regulated Detected Contaminants Table 
2021 Inorganic Chemicals - Annual Monitoring at Plant Finished Tap 

Regulated 
Contaminant 

Test Date Unit 
Health 
Goal 

MCLG 

Allowed 
Level 
MCL 

Highest 
Level 

Detected 

Range of 
Detection 

Violation Major Sources in Drinking Water 

Fluoride 04/13/2021 ppm 4 4 0.44 n/a no 

Erosion of natural deposit; Water 
additive, which promotes strong teeth; 
Discharge from fertilizer and aluminum 
factories. 

Nitrate 04/13/2021 ppm 10 10 0.33 n/a no 
Runoff from fertilizer use; Leaching 
from septic tanks, sewage; Erosion of 
natural deposits. 

Barium 5-16-2017 ppm 2 2 0.01 n/a no 
Discharge of drilling wastes; Discharge 
from metal refineries; Erosion of 
natural deposits. 

 
2021 Disinfection Residual - Monitoring in the Distribution System 

Regulated 
Contaminant 

Test 
Date 

Unit 
Health 
Goal 

MRDLG 

Allowed 
Level 
MRDL 

Highest 
Level 
RAA 

Range of 
Quarterly 
Results 

Violation Major Sources in Drinking Water 

Total Chlorine Residual 2021 ppm 4 4 0.76 0.58-0.84 no Water additive used to control microbes 

 
2021 Turbidity - Monitored Every 4 Hours at the Plant Finished Water Tap 

Highest Single 
Measurement Cannot 

Exceed 1 NTU 

Lowest Monthly % of Samples Meeting 
Turbidity Limit of 0.3 NTU (minimum 95%) 

Violation Major Sources in Drinking Water 

0.11 NTU 100% no Soil Runoff 

Turbidity has no health effects. However, turbidity can interfere with disinfection and provide a medium for microbial 

growth. Turbidity may indicate the presence of disease-causing organisms. These organisms include bacteria, viruses, 

and parasites that can cause symptoms such as nausea, cramps, diarrhea and associated headaches. 

 
 

2021 Special Monitoring 

Contaminant Test Date Unit MCLG MCL Highest Level Detected Source of Contaminant 

Sodium  04/13/2021 ppm n/a n/a 4.45 Erosion of natural deposits 

 
Regulated 

Contaminant 
Treatment Technique Typical Source of Contaminant 

Total Organic Carbon ppm 

The Total Organic Carbon (TOC) removal ratio is calculated as 
the ratio between the actual TOC removal and the TOC removal 
requirements.  The TOC is measured each quarter and because 
the level is low, there is no requirement for TOC removal. 

Erosion of natural deposits 

These tables are based on tests conducted by GLWA in the year 2021 or the most recent testing done within the last five calendar years. GLWA 
conducts tests throughout the year only tests that show the presence of a substance or require special monitoring are presented in these tables. 
The State allows us to monitor for certain contaminants less than once per year because the concentrations of these contaminants are not 
expected to vary significantly from year to year. The data is representative of the water quality, but some are more than one year old. 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 
 

2021 Northeast Tap Water Mineral Analysis 

 

Parameter Units Max. Min. Avg.  Parameter Units Max. Min. Avg. 

Turbidity NTU 1.90  0.04  0.30  Phosphorus ppm 0.51  0.33  0.39  

Total Solids ppm 178  93  137  Free Carbon Dioxide ppm 11.0  6.4  8.8  

Total Dissolved Solids ppm 149  57  121  Total Hardness ppm 108  86  99  

Aluminum ppm 1.470  0.018  0.155  Total Alkalinity ppm 74  66  71  

Iron ppm 0.3  0.1  0.2  Carbonate Alkalinity ppm 0  0  0  

Copper ppm 0.009  ND 0.003  Bi-Carbonate Alkalinity ppm 74  66  71  

Magnesium ppm 8.1  6.1  7.4  Non-Carbonate Hardness ppm 35  19  28  

Calcium ppm 28.5  21.4  25.4  Chemical Oxygen Demand ppm 5.5  ND 1.9  

Sodium ppm 7.0  4.5  5.2  Dissolved Oxygen ppm 12.3  8.7  10.4  

Potassium ppm 1.2  0.8  1.0  Nitrite Nitrogen ppm ND ND 0.0  

Manganese ppm 0.005  ND 0.000  Nitrate Nitrogen ppm 0.43  0.24  0.32  

Lead ppm ND ND 0.000  Fluoride ppm 0.72  0.44  0.57  

Zinc ppm ND ND 0.000  pH  7.34  7.08  7.21  

Silica ppm 2.9  1.8  2.2  
Specific Conductance @ 25 
°C. 

μmhos 276  190  227  

Sulfate ppm 28.1  21.9  24.7  Temperature °C 68.0  9.3  24.0  

Chloride ppm 11.9  9.2  10.4       

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

 
2021 Lake Huron Regulated Detected Contaminants Table 

2021 Inorganic Chemicals - Annual Monitoring at Plant Finished Tap 

Regulated 
Contaminant 

Test Date Unit 
Health 
Goal 

MCLG 

Allowed 
Level 
MCL 

Highest 
Level 

Detected 

Range of 
Detection 

Violation Major Sources in Drinking Water 

Fluoride 04/13/2021 ppm 4 4 0.62 n/a no 

Erosion of natural deposit; Water 
additive, which promotes strong teeth; 
Discharge from fertilizer and aluminum 
factories. 

Nitrate 04/13/2021 ppm 10 10 0.31 n/a no 
Runoff from fertilizer use; Leaching 
from septic tanks, sewage; Erosion of 
natural deposits. 

Barium 05-16-2017 ppm 2 2 0.01 n/a no 
Discharge of drilling wastes; Discharge 
from metal refineries; Erosion of 
natural deposits. 

 

2021 Disinfection Residual - Monitoring in the Distribution System 

Regulated 
Contaminant 

Test 
Date 

Unit 
Health 
Goal 

MRDLG 

Allowed 
Level 
MRDL 

Highest 
Level 
RAA 

Range of 
Quarterly 
Results 

Violation Major Sources in Drinking Water 

Total Chlorine Residual 2021 ppm 4 4 0.8 0.72-0.87 no Water additive used to control microbes 

 

2021 Turbidity - Monitored Every 4 Hours at the Plant Finished Water Tap 

Highest Single 
Measurement Cannot 

Exceed 1 NTU 

Lowest Monthly % of Samples Meeting 
Turbidity Limit of 0.3 NTU (minimum 95%) 

Violation Major Sources in Drinking Water 

0.09 NTU 100% no Soil Runoff 

Turbidity has no health effects. However, turbidity can interfere with disinfection and provide a medium for microbial 

growth. Turbidity may indicate the presence of disease-causing organisms. These organisms include bacteria, viruses, 

and parasites that can cause symptoms such as nausea, cramps, diarrhea and associated headaches. 

 

Regulated Contaminant Treatment Technique Typical Source of Contaminant 

Total Organic Carbon ppm 

The Total Organic Carbon (TOC) removal ratio is calculated as the 
ratio between the actual TOC removal and the TOC removal 
requirements.  The TOC is measured each quarter and because the 
level is low, there is no requirement for TOC removal. 

Erosion of natural deposits 

 

Radionuclides - Monitored at the Plant Finished Tap in 2014 

Regulated 
Contaminant 

Test 
Date 

Unit MCLG MCL 
Level 

Detected 
Violation Major Sources in Drinking Water 

Combined Radium  
Radium 226 and 228 5/13/14 pCi/L 0 5 0.86 + 0.55 no Erosion of natural deposits 

 

2021 Special Monitoring 

Contaminant Test Date Unit MCLG MCL Highest Level Detected Source of Contaminant 

Sodium  4/13/2021 ppm n/a n/a 4.23 Erosion of natural deposits 

These tables are based on tests conducted by GLWA in the year 2021 or the most recent testing done within the last five calendar years. GLWA 
conducts tests throughout the year only tests that show the presence of a substance or require special monitoring are presented in these tables. 
The State allows us to monitor for certain contaminants less than once per year because the concentrations of these contaminants are not 
expected to vary significantly from year to year. The data is representative of the water quality, but some are more than one year old. 

 



 
 

2021 Lake Huron Tap Water Mineral Analysis 
Parameter Units Max. Min. Avg.  Parameter Units Max. Min. Avg. 

Turbidity NTU 0.11  0.04  0.07  Chloride ppm 10.1  8.4  9.6  

Total Solids ppm 164  70  124  Phosphorus ppm 0.48  0.36  0.40  

Total Dissolved Solids ppm 148  68  113  Free Carbon Dioxide ppm 8.3  4.4  5.8  

Aluminum ppm 0.139  0.023  0.060  Total Hardness ppm 107  85  98  

Iron ppm 0.3  0.1  0.2  Total Alkalinity ppm 78  72  75  

Copper ppm 0.001  ND 0.000  Carbonate Alkalinity ppm 0  0  0  

Magnesium ppm 8.3  6.0  7.4  Bi-Carbonate Alkalinity ppm 78  72  74  

Calcium ppm 27.7  20.5  25.0  Non-Carbonate Hardness ppm 29  13  24  

Sodium ppm 16.1  4.0  5.8  Chemical Oxygen Demand ppm 5.0  ND 1.9  

Potassium ppm 1.1  0.8  1.0  Dissolved Oxygen ppm 12.6  8.3  10.5  

Manganese ppm ND ND 0.000  Nitrite Nitrogen ppm ND ND 0.0  

Lead ppm ND ND 0.000  Nitrate Nitrogen ppm 0.37  0.29  0.33  

Zinc ppm 0.003  ND 0.001  Fluoride ppm 0.80  0.59  0.67  

Silica ppm 2.5  1.8  2.2  pH  7.53  7.25  7.42  

Sulfate ppm 22.4  17.3  19.3  
Specific Conductance @ 25 
°C 

µmhos 312  188  222  

     Temperature °C 68.2  4.2  19.2  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 

VILLAGE OF BEVERLY HILLS 

 

 

Lead and Copper Monitoring at the Customer’s Tap in 2021 

Regulated 
Contaminant 

Test 
Date 

Unit 
Health 
Goal 

MCLG 

Action 
Level 

AL 

90th 
Percentile 

Value* 

Number 
of 

Samples 
Over AL 

Range of  
Individual  
Samples 
Results 

Violation 

Major Sources in Drinking Water 

Lead 2021 ppb 0 15 0 0 0 - 5 no 

Lead services lines, corrosion of 
household, plumbing including fittings 
and fixtures. Erosion of natural 
deposits”  

Copper 2021 ppm 1.3 1.3 0.1 0.0 0.0 - 0.1 no 
Corrosion of household plumbing 
system. Erosion of natural deposits. 

* The 90th percentile value means 90 percent of the homes tested have lead and copper levels below the given 90 th percentile value.  If the 90th 
percentile value is above the AL additional requirements must be met. 

 

2021 Number of Water Service Connections by Service Line Material 

Number of Lead Service Lines 
Number of Service Lines of Unknown 

Material 
Total Number of Service Lines 

2 1359 4371 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2021 Microbiological Contaminants – Monthly Monitoring in Distribution System 

Regulated 
Contaminant 

MCLG MCL 
Highest 
Number 
Detected 

Violation 
yes/no 

Major Sources in 
Drinking Water 

Total Coliform Bacteria 0 
Presence of Coliform bacteria > 5% of 
monthly samples 

0 no 
Naturally present in the 
environment 

E. coli Bacteria 0 
A routine sample and a repeat sample 
are total coliform positive, and one is 
also E.coli positive. 

0 no Sanitary defects 

2021 Disinfection By-Products – Monitoring in Distribution System, Stage 2 Disinfection By-Products 

Regulated 
Contaminant 

Test 
Date 

Unit 
Health 
Goal 

MCLG 

Allowed 
Level 
MCL 

Highest 
LRAA 

Range of 
Detection 

Violation 
yes/no 

Major Sources in Drinking 
Water 

Total Trihalomethanes (TTHM) 2021 ppb n/a 80 25 16 – 24 no 
By-product of drinking water 
chlorination 

Haloacetic Acids 
 (HAA5) 

2021 ppb n/a  60 19 13 - 20 no 
By-product of drinking water 
disinfection 



 
 
2020 Unregulated Contaminant Monitoring Rule (UCMR4)  
 
The UCMR program provides the EPA and other interested parties with nationally representative data on the occurrence 
of particular contaminants in drinking water, the number of people potentially being exposed and an estimate of the levels 
of that exposure. In accordance with SDWA, EPA will consider the occurrence data from UCMR4 and other sources, 
along with the peer reviewed health effects assessments, to support a regulatory determination on whether to initiate the 
process to develop a national primary drinking water regulation. 
 
The table lists the minimum reporting level, level detected, average and range of each contaminant detected. 
 
Detection levels are in micro grams per Liter (1μg/L = 1ppb) 

 

Contaminant  

Minimum Reporting Level 
μg/L 

Level 
Detected  

 
AVG Range  

HAA5 NA NA 13.44 9.97 – 17.23 

HAA6Br NA NA 7.08 6.15 – 8.41 

HAA9 NA NA 19.86 15.89 – 24.91 

 

Important Health Information 
 
Lead 
If present, elevated levels of lead can cause serious health problems, especially for pregnant women 
and young children. Lead in drinking water is primarily from materials and components associated 
with service lines and home plumbing. The Village of Beverly Hills is responsible for providing high 
quality drinking water but cannot control the variety of materials used in plumbing components. When 
your water has been sitting for several hours, you can minimize the potential for lead exposure by 
flushing your tap for 30 seconds to 2 minutes before using the water for drinking or cooking. If you 
have a lead service line it is recommended that you run your water for 5 minutes to flush water from 
both your home plumbing and the lead service line. If you are concerned about lead in your water, you 
may wish to have your water tested. Information on lead in drinking water, testing methods, and steps 
you can take to minimize exposure is available from the Safe Drinking Water Hotline 1-800-462-4791 
or at http://www.epa.gov/safewater/lead. 
 
Infants and children who drink water containing lead could experience delays in their physical or mental 
development. Children could show slight deficits in attention span and learning abilities. Adults who drink 
this water over many years could develop kidney problems or high blood pressure. 
 

People with Special Health Concerns 
Some people may be more vulnerable to contaminants in drinking water than the general population. 
Immuno-compromised persons such as persons with cancer undergoing chemotherapy, persons who have 
undergone organ transplants, people with HIV/AIDS or other immune system disorders, some elderly and 
infants can be particularly at risk from infections. These people should seek advice about drinking water 
from their health care providers.  EPA/CDC guidelines on appropriate means to lessen the risk of infection 
by Cryptosporidium and other microbial contaminants are available from the Safe Drinking Water Hotline at 
(800) 426-4791. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

http://www.epa.gov/safewater/lead


 
 
Questions: 
Local Distribution: Village of Beverly Hills (248) 646-6404 
 
Southeastern Oakland County Water Supply System – Water Authority offices: (248) 288-5150.  Visit our web 
site at  www.socwa.org 
 

Great Lakes Water Authority – www.glwater.org  
 

Michigan Department of Environment, Great Lakes, and Energy (EGLE) - (586) 753-3755 –  
www.michigan.gov/egle 

 
 

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency – Safe Drinking Water Hotline: (800) 426-4791. 
 
Water quality data for community water systems throughout the United States is available at 
https://www.epa.gov/wqs-tech  

 
 

http://www.socwa.org/
http://www.glwater.org/
file://///MIROA005/Shared/Lab/CCR's/CCR%20Reports/CCR%202019/Southfield/www.michigan.gov/egle
https://www.epa.gov/wqs-tech




Volunteers Needed!

PARK CLEAN
UP & TREE
PLANTING
Saturday, May 14, 2022 - 8:45 a.m. to Noon
Beverly Park, 18801 Beverly Road, Beverly Hills, MI 
Make a difference in a few hours that can last decades! The Village
of Beverly Hills will be planting several trees at Beverly Park on May
14th thanks to grant funding from the DTE Energy Foundation. The
purpose is to restore the area after the removal of invasive
buckthorn and dead trees.
Experts from ReLeaf Michigan 
will be on site to show 
volunteers how to plant a tree.
Masks and gloves are 
recommended! 
Please wear closed-
toe shoes and bring 
a shovel if you have 
one. Rain or shine. 

We will also be having our 
annual Park Clean Up Event for
those interested in helping clean up!
We hope to see you there!

To volunteer, please sign up at:

Questions, please contact Janice Hausman at 
248-677-1884 or hausmanhouse@gmail.com

https://www.signupgenius.com/go/9040f44a4af2fa46-community1

https://www.signupgenius.com/go/9040f44a4af2fa46-community1


Info Item


	Agenda 04192022 (color)
	C1 Draft Council Minutes 04052022
	C2 Draft Council Minutes 04072022
	C3 Review and file bills recapped 04.11.2022
	04.19.2022 Cover Sheet
	chk

	B1 Beverly Park Pathway Improvement Memo and Bid Tab
	B2 Park Pathway Memo
	B2 20220408_rec_of_award

	B2 MDOT Resolution
	B3 MDOT Memo
	2207B

	B3 Douglas Evans Parking Lot Memo and Docs
	B3 Douglas Evans Parking Lot Memo
	20220414_design_proposal_rev01
	Douglas Evans CAD Drawing-Layout2 (002)
	Sheets and Views
	Layout2



	B4 Budget Amendments
	Budget Memo re 4.14.22 Amendments
	4.19.22 Budget Amendments

	Manager's Report 04142022
	RESOLUTION -- Closed Session -- 4.13.22
	BHPS weekly activity report March 24-April 13 2022
	2021 Village of Beverly Hills  FINAL CCR
	Info Item OC Document Shredding
	Info Item May 14, 2022 Clean Up and Tree Planting
	Info Item Comcast

	Clear Form button: 
	Text1: Village of Beverly Hills
	Text2: 
	0: Village Manager
	1: Public Services Director
	2: 
	3: 

	Text3: Village Council
	Text4: Village of Beverly Hills
	Text5: Oakland
	Text6: Regular
	Text7: 19th
	Text8: April
	Text9: 2022
	Text11: Village Clerk
	Print Signed Name: Kristin Rutkowski


